Brandon Select Board Meeting
May 9, 2022
7:00 p.m.

The Brandon Select Board will meet Monday, May 9, 2022 at 7:00 p.m. at the Brandon
Town Hall located at 1 Conant Square expecting to consider the items noted on this
agenda. Agendas shall be posted on the community bulletin board located at the
Town Office at 49 Center Street and on the community bulletin board located at the
Junction Store & Deli at 2265 Forest Dale Road. The Select Board reserves the right to
add additional items, if necessary, at the beginning of the meeting.

Interested parties may also attend this meeting electronically:
* Video Conference via ZOOM: Meeting ID (253 279 4161)
¢ Conference call: Dial (929) 205 6099

1) Call to Order
a) Agenda Adoption

2) Approval of Minutes
a) Select Board Minutes — April 25, 2022

3) Town Manager’s Report
4) Public Comment and Participation

5) Union Street Sidewalk Alternatives Discussion
6) Resolution for Grant Anticipation Note

7) Fiscal
a) Warrant — May 9, 2022 - $199,102.93

8) Executive Session

The appointment or employment or evaluation of a public officer or employee
per 1 V.S.A. § 313(3)(a)(3)

9) Adjournment



Brandon Select Board Meeting
April 25, 2022

NOTE: These are unapproved minutes, subject to amendment and/or approval at the
subsequent board meeting,.

Board Members In Attendance: Seth Hopkins, Brian Coolidge, Tim Guiles, Michael
Markowski, Tracy Wyman

Others in Attendance: Dave Atherton, Bill Moore, Bernie Carr, Jim Emerson, Jack Schneider,
Neil Silins

Other In Attendance Via Zoom: Police Chief Kachajian, Jan Coolidge, Keith Whitcomb,
Annie Stratton, Stephanie Jerome, Trisha Welch

1. Call to order
The meeting was called to order by Seth Hopkins, Chair 7:00PM,
a) Agenda Adoption

Motion by Brian Coolidge/Tracy Wyman to adopt the agenda as amended. The motion passed
unanimously.

Add Police Cruiser Purchase
2. Approval of Minutes
a} Select Board Minutes — April 11, 2022

Motion by Mike Markowski/Brian Coolidge to approve the April 11, 2022, minutes as amended.
The motion passed with one abstention — Tracy Wyman.

Change minutes to reflect that Jan Coolidge was on Zoom, not in person.
3. Town Manager’s Report
Dave Atherton provided the following report:
. The Town received the Class 2 paving grant for the Arnold District Road. The amount has been
increased from $100,000 to $200,000.
. Mr. Atherton met with the landowner near the culvert that is to be replaced on Arnold District

Road regarding a temporary easement. They are very supportive of the project and are excited to
see it getting replaced.

Brandon Select Board Minutes 1
April 25, 2022



Bill Moote, Acting Town Manager during Mr. Atherton’s absence, provided the following
report:

. The Highway Department has been busy with spring clean-up.

. Pickleball @ the Neshobe school will commence on Sunday, May 1 from 3PM to 5PM

. May 7™ is Green-up Day, Join Jim Leary, Green-up Day Coordinator, at Central Park to pick up

bags and give instructions on where 1o bring them after being filled.

. May 14" is the Neshobe Kindness and Safety Day. A multi-organizational collaboration to

bring folks together at the Neshobe School from Noon to 4PM. Neshobe PTO, Brandon Fire,

Rescue, Police, Brandon Area Toy Project, Brandon Area Bike Association, and the Rec will

have many family-friendly displays along with food, music, fun, annual Omya Helmet Give-
Away, Boyce Family-sponsored Bike Safety Course, and Brandon Area Bike Association bike

tune-up.

4. Public Comments and Participation

Bill Moore reported there will be a revote of the OVUU school budget tomorrow and polls will
be open in Brandon from 10AM to 7PM. The voting will take place at the Brandon American
Legion.

S. Announce Vacancies on Planning Commission

Seth Hopkins reported there are two vacancies on the Planning Commission. Individuals
interested in serving on the Committee were encouraged to contact the Town Manager.

6. Appointment

. Rutland Regional Planning Commission (RRPC) Representative for Remainder of Term
Ending June 30, 2022

Mr. Hopkins advised this appointment would take the Town Manager’s place on the RRPC
Board. Dave Atherton noted it is better for someone on the local Planning Commission to be the
regional representative to the RRPC. Mr. Hopkins thanked Mr. Schneider for volunteeting to
serve as the Town’s representative to the RRPC.

Motion by Tracy Wyman/Mike Markowski to approve the appointment of Jack Schneider as
Brandon’s representative to the RRPC for the remainder of the term ending June 30, 2022. The
motion passed unanimously.

7. Brandon Energy Committee

. SolarFest Discussion

Jim Emerson reported SolarFest will have an Open House on June 4™ for their main supporters,

volunteers, and key people, including several members of the community. The event will be to
explain their game plan for the current and coming years. They have invited the Town Manager

Brandon Select Board Minutes 2
April 25, 2022



to share a few words of welcome. Their annual event this year will be a one-day event on
September 12% and they are currently formulating the plan for the festivities. Mr. Emerson
advised that as a citizen of the Town, he is brainstorming ideas of what can be done in
coordination with their fall event to involve local businesses. Jack Schneider advised their annual
event is usually held in July but has been pushed back to September this year. Bill Moore
acknowledged the hard work of the Brandon Energy Committee and Selectman Tim Guiles in
welcoming SolarFest and serving as liaisons for the Town. Seth Hopkins noted something like
this does not just happen but is a cultivation of relationships and background work that goes into
attracting this type of group to the community and extended the Select Board’s gratitude. Mr.
Emerson advised SolarFest is also planning to have a year-round training program with in-class
training and will be using the barn space for some of their hands-on programs. Dave Atherton
suggested meeting with Bill Moore, the Chamber Director and him to discuss how to welcome
SolarFest to town without causing financial burden to the businesses. Mr, Atherton reported he
received a call from the State asking about the Davenport monument in Forestdale that the Town
owns. He noted it needs a refurbishing and welcomed assistance from anyone who would like to
volunteer for this project. Mr. Emerson will bring this request to the Energy Committee. He also
noted the Energy Committee is hoping to do a video to announce the Davenport Fest that will
include the monument. Stephanie Jerome reported the Thomas Davenport resolution was signed
by the House of Representatives and will be presented at the EVFest this July. Ms. Jerome
questioned if the SolarFest’ s training would result in certification and Mr. Emerson confirmed
that it would. Ms. Jerome suggested advertising this with the local high school. Mr. Emerson
reported SolarFest has been coordinating with Devon Karpak at Otter Valley regarding this
program and have been discussing other areas where they can work together with the school. Mr.
Hopkins requested the resolution be shared with the Select Board and suggested it be made more
accessible. Ms, Jerome noted it was a good opportunity to educate the House regarding Thomas
Davenport and is a good piece of PR for the State and Brandon. It was noted that Dr. Kevin
Thornton had drafted the proclamation for the Town and Mr. Moore advised that Dr. Thornton
has put a lot of time and effort to bring Mr. Davenport’s fame to light. It was noted that SolarFest
will be located north of Brandon on the land behind the Community Health Center with access
from Route 73.

. ARPA Community Solar

Jim Emerson stated the Energy Committee suggests a community solar project as one of the uses
for the ARAP funds with a proposed location of the old landfill on Corona Street. The suggested
system would be for a 150kW solar project due to the single-phase power by GMP, The
available land is close to an acre and if deemed to be less than an acre, the Energy Committee
discussed with MHG the possibility of more efficient panels to use on less land. MHG
recommended using stone cages as a more economical and environmentally friendly option to
using concrete platforms for the panels. MITG provided a cost estimate of $375,000 to $525,000
due to current supply chain issues. Mr. Emerson stated it was calculated the Town uses about
415,000kW hours annually. From the Town’s contract with Green Lantern of 320,000kW hours,
there is still 95,000kW hours needed currently. Excess generation could be used by the Fire
District at a discounted rate, with the estimated usage of that department at 200,000k W hours per
year ot it could also be used for community solar. This project would help the Town meet its
goal towards the State’s renewable goal. As the Town moves more towards use of BV, the

Brandon Select Board Minutes 3
April 25, 2022



current fleet is traveling around 55,000 to 60,000 miles per year which would need an estimated
20,000k W hours per year. Mr. Emerson advised in the event of an issue with a landfill solar
project, there is potentially an alternative solution as SelarFest is planning to place a 500kW
community solar project on their land. Mr. Emerson noted the 150kW project would generate
235,000k'W hours, which would provide a net savings of $40,000 per year that would benefit the
taxpayers of the Town, The Energy Committee endorses setting aside $500,000 of ARPA funds
for a solar project until the exact cost could be determined. The $40,000 savings could be used
for bonds to fund the other projects on the ARPA fund list. Dave Atherton stated the landfill has
a clay cover and a solar project would need to be flush mounted as the covering could not be
penctrated. Tim Guiles noted Bristol had the same issue and their project was developed totally
on the surface without penetrating the land. Mike Markowski noted $500,000 would use 90% of
what is left for ARPA funding with around $125,000 used for the Fire District 1 and 2 project
and $360,000 for the Newton Road pump station project. Mr. Emerson stated in three to six
months, a more accurate figure could be determined. Mr. Atherton would like to see the projects
that are at a crucial need get done first and noted that bonding for sidewalks or roads is not a
good idea as the Town would be paying past the longevity of what is being bonded. Mr. Atherton
suggested discussion with another solar company, similar to the agreement the Town has with
Green Lantern where the solar company builds the array and the Town receives cost savings and
taxes on the project. Tim Guiles stated when reviewing Middlebury’s project, they compared
Green Lantern to ownership, and ownership created a much larger benefit. He thought Green
Lantern is great for the Town, but ownership would be more beneficial. It was suggested to bond
for the solar project and use the ARPA funds for the municipal projects. It was also suggested a
solar array could potentially be placed on the Police Department roof to make the entire complex
self-sufficient or at the future Town Garage. Mr. Atherton advised he had previously discussed
the landfill location with Green Lantern and the concern was that the three-phase falls shott so it
is not as cost effective. Mr, Guiles stated Green Lantern could not make it possible, but with
town-ownership it comes into a different class and he would like to see a bid process to
determine the hard numbers. Jan Coolidge questioned who would be paying for the
decommissioning costs as all costs need to be considered. Mr. Emerson advised the
decommissioning costs would be fairly modest with the cages and the panels now recyclable.
Mr. Atherton noted with the Green Lantern project, they own the panels and are responsible for
decommissioning the project and the Town gets 15% of the energy and payment for leasing the
land. Mr. Hopkins stated the Board will continue to look at all projects and the funding sources
available and for community solar, there may be another option for the Town to consider in six
months.

. Electric Police Car Research

Jack Schneider of the Energy Committee reported he had researched information about EV
police cruisers and provided a summary to the Select Board. The Energy Committee is following
the Towns’ Green Fleet Policy to try to reduce gas house emissions. Mr. Schneider attended a
demonstration by the Richmond Police Chief of their EV police cruiser that the department has
had since October. The advantage of an EV is that they are fast, have very low fuel costs and
virtually no maintenance. It was noted that Tesla has some cars that are going to be approaching
one million miles. Richmond’s Chief thinks their replacement cycle will be 6 years rather than 4
years. In general, there is a price premium for EVs but payback would be 18 months to 2 years.

Brandon Select Board Minutes 4
April 2h, 2022



Some of the perceived drawbacks is the range, however, Richmond is going over three hundred
miles on a charge. In Brandon, the vehicles are driven 40 or 50 miles per day. In Brandon, the
officers can drive their cars home and they could be plugged in there. In cold weather, the Tesla
model is found to lose 20% of the charge. The NYC police department has put in ballistic glass
and catry more equipment than this Town’s department would need and the additional weight is
not considered to be an issue for Richmond, The interior for both the Tesla and Ford Mach-E are
too small for a cage. Richmond has put a cage in their truck for prisoner transport. Richmond’s
Chief also noted the EV performs well in snow but is more of an issue on muddy roads. Of the
major car manufactures, Nissan and Toyota offer an EV that is used for administrative purposes,
but not for patrol. Ford and Tesla are the major players for the police departments with Ford
having two-thirds of the market, Dodge is a couple of years away from offering an EV for police
use. In terms of environmental reasons and the cost of maintenance and fuel, an EV makes a lot
of sense for the Town. There are supply chain delays. Ford completely outfits the Mach-E
cruiser; however, a retrofitter would need to be found for the Tesla for the lights or other kinds of
equipment. The Tesla fully loaded would cost between $60,000 and $62,000 and the Ford Mach-
E’s cost would be $54,000 plus add-ons. Richmond paid $58,0000 fully loaded for their Tesla.
There will be a delay with purchasing an EV, but if there is not an immediate need, it is
recommended fo postpone the purchase. Jim Emerson stated Tesla does require some retrofit, but
there are companies in the region that do that. With the principle of reduce, recycle, and reuse,
the Energy Committee is recommending the Town not buy a vehicle until it is really needed. He
does not think there is a huge emergency to purchase one right now.

Dave Atherton reported the Town’s fleet consists of an F150, two — Explorers, two — Taurus and
two — Chargers of which one is out of service. The Town is looking at trading one of the
Chargers and there is a need to replace the other one that is ten years old. There are currently six
staff members that includes Chief Kachajian. Mr. Atherton advised that all officers take a car
home and the Chief is conducting interviews for hiring another officer. There will be seven
police officers and there will be a need to supply seven vehicles. Tim Guiles did not think there
was the need for officers to take vehicles home. 1t was noted that this is a stipulation in the Union
contract. Mr, Guiles stated there is information about per capita spending on police and the
average in Vermont is $62.91 and Brandon spends $220 which is more than three times the
average. He thinks it is reasonable to discuss how to bring the Town’s police department towards
the average. Mr. Atherton stated the officers are on call and this is one of the benefits of working
for the Brandon Police Department. Over the last couple of years, the Department has been
smaller that has required the officers to be on call. With regard to the cost, the townspeople
wanted 24-hour coverage and there are some towns that have part-time coverage and do not have
full-time certified officers. There are also towns that are covered by the State Police. Mr. Guiles
questioned how often officers need to respond from home, rather than going to the office to get a
car. Tracy Wyman stated the comumunity had indicated they wanted 24-hour coverage and if a
change were to be made, he thought the Select Board needs to put this out to the voters. Mr.
Wyman cited an incident in Leicester where someone had to wait for two hours for the State
Police to arrive on a scene. Mr. Wyman also noted the Union contract indicates the officers can
take a car home and retention of good officers is important. Mr, Guiles stated it has not been
proven successful in maintaining staff with allowing the police officers to take their cars home.
Mike Markowski stated the number has been determined to be seven officers as Chief Brickell
had indicated that would be required for 24-hour coverage. Trisha Welch suggested the Town

Branden Select Board Minutes 5
April 25, 2022



should be buying a new gas car as it can be purchased from G. Stones now and when the quirks
are worked out, purchase an EV in the coming years. The police should be supported and Ms.-
Welch does not want to have to wait for an officer to go through a snowstorm to get a car before
answering a call. Chief Kachajian advised with seven officers, the Department is able to do 20-
hours with officers on call for 4 hours. He is actively trying to recruit officers and, in this day
and age, Brandon needs to be competitive and needs to compete with other agencies. The Town
will lose officers to other towns that can offer additional benefits and there is a need to invest in
good employees. He does not want to see anything that can affect that and taking home cars is a
benefit and will attract officers to come into the Department. There are other towns that will
offer more to take officers away from towns. He noted that a take-home car is a major benefit
and in inclement weather, it can make a difference between life and death. There are 20 hours
when officers are on duty and 4 hours a day when officers are on call and he hopes to get the
extra position to get to 24 hours. Mr. Atherton noted there is nothing on the agenda to talk about
a change in the Police Department. Seth Hopkins stated the conversation provides information to
the Select Board for their consideration of an EV or gas police car. Jim Emerson stated if it is
deemed necessary to purchase now, an EV will last twice as long compared to the current fleet.
There will be a savings of $45,000 per year once one recovers the excess costs. He does not want
to go back to gas and pollute. Bill Moore stated this is a phenomenal Police Department and one
needs the history of the Town to understand how it decided this amount of coverage and the
willingness to fund it. Tracy Wyman agreed the Town needs to go to EVs, but he does not think
it is the right time to do that.

8. Police Car Purchase

Seth Hopkins noted there has been a lot of information received which includes the prior EV
research discussed.

Motion by Brian Coolidge/Tracy Wyman to move forward with the Police Chief’s
recommendation to purchase a Ford Explorer for an amount not to exceed $45,242.

Tim Guiles stated investing in fossil fuel is the wrong thing to do and at the very least, the Town
should not be replacing a car with an SUV that is a larger vehicle. The Energy Committee has
produced valid information and talked to other police departments that shows an EV police car is
viable. Brian Coolidge noted he trusts the police chief’s recommendation and he does not think
the EVs are ready for police use, Tracy Wyman noted the delivery time would also be longer.
Police Chief Kachajian understood Mr. Schneidet’s presentation and recommendation but noted
that his recommendation did not change. He agreed the next purchase of a police vehicle would
be an EV as long as it is a viable option for the Department. He needs to do what is the best for
this community and he does not feel that it is the appropriate choice at this time, but by the time
another vehicle is purchased he intends to do so. He is trying to be fiscally responsible and is
committed to going green and will commit to purchase an EV if it suits the Department’s needs
in the future. The Mach-E is not built for police departments and he does not feel comfortable
with transporting a prisoner that is not separated by a cage. The safety of his officers is a major
concern, but he is more than willing to look at an electric vehicle when the time comes in the
future.

Brandon Select Board Minutes G
April 25, 2022



The motion passed 3 to 2 — No votes by Seth Hopkins and Tim Guiles.

9, ARPA Discussion

Seth Hopkins noted there was previous discussion in the meeting and this agenda item is a
placeholder for discussion.

10. Trustees of Public Funds Position on Mosquito Abatement Funding

Seth Hopkins reported the Trustees of Public Funds have a change in the position of funding
mosquito abatement. Minutes of their meeting were provided to the Board noting they have been
advised by an attorney that the bequest is not designated for mosquito control. Mr. Hopkins
noted the Town has relied on the funding to cover a portion of the assessment to the mosquito
district. Mr. Hopkins stated it is the responsibility of the Town to meet the Otter Creek
Watershed Insect Control District funding. Mr, Hopkins questioned the analysis of the bequest
noting that in 1960 when the Shirley Farr’s will was created, drainage of swamps and spraying of
trees was the way insects were controlled and noted Ms. Farr served a long time on a committee
to control and mitigate these ill effects. Mr. Hopkins requested the Town Manager have a
conversation with the Trustees of Public Funds regarding this topic. Mr. Atherton suggested
having a conversation with the Town’s attorney first, Mr, Atherton stated the Trustees have
funded a portion of the assessment for quite some time and did not have a problem with the
language in Shirley Fart’s will and it is not known why the interpretation changed. Bernie Carr
stated perhaps the current board has taken a different view but noted for the general welfate of
the community and quality of life, the funding has to come from somewhere. He is sure that
every taxpayer feels strongly about the mosquitoes, as the quality of life was down to zero when
the mosquitos were a major issue. This is money well spent for the Town of Brandon and it
needs to be taken care of somehow. Mr. Carr stated there is a backlash to the mosquito district
and this is dangerous as it is known what can happen. The Town cannot let the mosquito district
be reduced as a thriving village could not be maintained. Mr, Hopkins agreed and noted there has
been full support for the mosquito district. The Select Board is not wavering for the mosquito
district, but the bequest needs to be honored. The Town Manager will talk to the Town’s attorney
and will have a conversation with the Trustees of Public Funds on this subject.

10. Fiscal
a) Warrant — April 25, 2022 - $106,887.02

Motion by Brian Coolidge/Tracy Wyman to approve the April 25, 2022, warrant in the amount
of $106,887.02. The motion passed unanimously.

The Board recessed at 8:38PM.

The Board reconvened at 8:46PM.

Brandon Select Board Minutes 7
April 25, 2022



Motion by Seth Hopkins/Mike Markowski to enter into executive session at 8:46PM for the
appointment or employment or evaluation of a public officer or employee per 1 V.S.A.
313(3)(a)(3). The motion passed unanimously.

11. Executive Session

Motion by Tracy Wyman/Mike Markowski to come out of executive session at 9:45PM. The
motion passed unanimously.

There were no actions required.
12. Adjournment

Motion by Brian Coolidge/Tracy Wyman to adjourn the Select Board meeting at 9:46PM. The
motion passed unanimously,

Respectfully submitted,

Charlene Bryant
Recording Secretary

Brandon Select Board Minutes 8
Bpril 25, 2022



Rec¢

Town Manager Report for May 9, 2022

» Attended the April 28" Ruttand Region Transportation Advisory Committee meeting. There was
a VTrans presentation on the Complete Streets Program and a discussion on cost effective
solutions for pedestrian safety, especially in and around crosswalks. Shawn and | have been
discussing ways to make a couple of our crosswalks more visible to traffic so this discussion was
quite helpful for us.

» The Arnold District Culvert replacement project has gone out to bid. There will be a pre-bid
meeting on site on May 18" at 10 am and the bid opening will be at the Town Office on June 31
at 10am.

» 1 have now received two of the three appraisals for the next round of property buyouts on
Newton Road. Both property owners are satisfied with the appraisal results and will be moving
forward with the buyout process.

> The caution signs for the Sanderson Bridge that we installed at the intersection of Long Swamp
and Short Swamp Road have been stolen. This is very unfortunate as the signs were placed there
to deter lost trucks from attempting to drive into the bridge. These particular signs were custom
made for the Town and were not inexpensive.

»> 1 will be out of town from May 11" to May 14" to attend a PACIF conference.

Dept News:

- The baseball diamonds and fields are full with baseball/softball players. There are over 160 kids
playing on 13 teams this spring season.

- Another reminder about Kindness and Safety day at the Neshobe School on May 14", The
Neshobe PTO/Brandon Rec/Brandon Area Toy Project sponsored event will be a great way for
the community to reconnect. The ever-popular FREE OMYA bike helmet give-away will draw a
crowd.

- Archery is back at Estabrook Park starting Thursdays in June.

- The Miss Michaela Dance class recital is on Saturday, May 21% @ the Brandon Town Hall 6:30
start time.

- Summer Programming is being released on the brandonrec.com website.



| _.N_NoNl Rew
- uonejuasald seAnjeusndlly
- UOJONJJSUOIBY Y[eMBPIS J384)S uolun

LZV1 dVL LA ‘uopueig




uopelasald mw.ﬁm&&ﬁ
(€hZvl dvl
IA ‘uopueig




J 81n0y
SN) 984S
uljue.l 4

_momﬁ%m_&m m_.m%mﬁouﬂ
o ehevidvl

‘uopueig




.quEn_..m r_é.von_ﬂx

o jo ysuay sy »o«.wmu__?.a_ag_ﬁ._occ w_auv__us .szEtn.“.mqu B apiaad

- mmwhmﬁa_ Ino Suinuyuod up days oo;boj preu ey 5390245 woIun puD Ipalosd xig awbag,

- £Bmog SN L ;m:n.:: vmn:ov_._u#rmzxmoa uasy say =§E§n .vv«uggmmn.m.:ovnﬂu

- U] B ParIasLC> PUD RUDJLLIDY opunIg E_Eﬁ DY pIofsid Jo
mmmm_._n__umugnvmﬁo—m:_._u!couoocutonx!u._tv_r._wﬁ_:vﬁ:au.u_o._a»cuv.__uhu_._um

_Srgaypind | se s ino) pus siBpiss | e3e| Yoq s ys tapdad StsigiUS{ur,

.,.ﬂ.ro_w»—_::EEov [Riases By of ww.aczcwu b_.smwm_.n _.u_._u ANy SRS E nmm.,_ﬁ
| O WO UIaq S04 JS0d SYL UL PIYM. ins_n_»._?nw;ﬁmm «mw._vm._._u._?_u Hienguss -
Hasig ﬁua.._u,.guv PUD Jas 1S UolurT 5o : B 1152 L..o.a.._.

. .“.n._UZLv\_bEUhI‘En._; ohmnEn re

.mﬁav_ﬂ.. Aptedoad jsni] Busno auj:iey saaes/senan se iAokl WieliBes sy feaus 1

ue ELUﬁtE,ghvé pum-pioddns SUDLIA Gume paginisue3 Aqpuaoan Ua) 3YLYOMAPIS, '

-0 PA0e ||k § PIs MaU Sy Al N0 yo siag) pasisssy idi

- 3y sapiaesd yoius A pedosd janif BUsnop. .E._:oo PUBjiny uEpBIs 1 o \B_.__.ﬁnobon.g_r
sinmisidlelive s|posows Auow Ay pesnSupling solo (ol pup Roots Binos-oo o oL |

SiLioy os{ois] LORO3D| S FAoM| 1Y EnE.m} Aq. pakeydug’ .A_Ewuw‘_ nn_nmohuiuo.__a._ n._GWE

SBRpialo |jp puo isdife sialep. feprouiedng ke
AU N0 J SUREISR AU SAIRE {f|M:PUE 5E
PO SYOMIPIS: YBOGL [0301 SPE DS

m««u_._vﬂ »__Eﬁwnﬂ w.._u ﬂ:ﬁy&ﬁu.ﬁmwam ﬂ.a_uhu_m w:u._.s DEOT ar._t._m_._g_t‘mc_w:& -

057 ‘_..o_“uu__mnu w_t mtunmzm F.nu“_nm_wmuﬁ By Rk B -G ISI A% H WekideiRaeR

DRI Ebmum uur_u:_._u ol (g Xomybi :;o._.u :

Heddng EEO.%_E%& 5 apiag SR A ono

:oﬁ.ﬂ..m “_o:za._. mf i piROqIARg: "oy

supiif. . er

" MW ISR SIS WIL
| NyWiZang o100y Ny g

HETDINYRA NN ADVAE,

AVH3-E0IA A3TvE anod

0zoT ._onEoﬁum a7 “Byog

mo..c.m“tmmm..i mm>....wm5m&<
{2yl dvi

A

£

uopueig




Tel0T L0V WaREd ﬁ
THIO1 )
St
IO 10V

AT S5300%4

L0 HEISDaE

- .mmm&nmwu.i‘m,w@m%wuﬂ”
U ehevldvL




uojjejussald SoARUIDNY
@izvl dviL
1A ‘uopueig







R
ADBHIYI 274G LMD

HINWE "0 7A NMVD
Zeog/Ere TG L0

T AMLYNAZLTY ~ L33HS NGILDTS TWSLL
SHIHLM L 7B QISR
QNEIS3HE T8 FHINVIT LIIAMOUS

COPURIEAHT IINVH T

[l BRE) AR - ]
NOONYHE - menwi Logrosd

=

oHng

e e T i 8 e e

- LEEA NI TS -
| —_==__==}

T S

XEFE. TPLS £ RKHK i
. @IiNg ON
HOID3: TWDI4AL [ SALVYNIIITY

.“W T g e r.p,ui..-}i.,..f...afa

=

widhod g0-Hiiped

L\aciyun omiasixa .

NOILLONRLSH03

N e e oot « b i i o Y A i oy i

mu.wmwmw&m w&w«:&&ﬂ ._
(chevidvl
A ‘uopuerg




i L) 3y T3] 'l

L] F LIRS HIAAS ATV -1 133HS MV ) ¥

OHELYL "D A GENOEHD SMEHIVN L T8 JEMISEE 4 1333 NI 3T¥0S amirste
HINIR0 "0 48 NEYVLED QEISRA U HIOYT] 153r0ms | L e = s ™ Istx23 =
2Oz 1BING L0 S0 IPQETIHE AN s §5 o 02 E} AIWE OL gumm =
aN =
{202V L 4V 3EniN 153rtus NIYISY =
NOONYYE  =3nvn wo30ud NOIS LasF &
: 13539 awY W»Mﬁw m

4§
o w N I
INORH3A A0 3IVLS
AN

NEYY “AYHYLSYN
A

-3 43F — -

-
e
bl
T
&
-
%
H P ]
vl =2 R R T e
= m. m..,g::!.!ihr
= 3 3* £ —— gunoBH2YoN
5 " annoemLies —
. A — B — i e—mm— e
=1
i
k
E
= "
x| e ﬁ
Bl = HSr B
(T _
o -
muuhﬂz_n 2 JINVHAILS o711 mu_huw_\mwﬁ £k
"EONYH *3ROLS ATTHIHS *ONT NN ¥ RYIHE  HoMHIr
AN £ 4N
I [
- - \
_ ”
| -
_ k]
~
5 & _
orid 2
aws ¥ _

N

W
i)
vi
T R

09,
J

LNOME3A 40 JivisS
AN

FAY Qvpy+

—
—_—

Eemm&m SOANEUIB)Y

W 0 ._W,._H_;H_n:oh:mum




R Er e e e D e

W40 % L3S ‘HOLERST LI - 2 TS KV . . . ] R .
AT TRE RO SEMULYA-I. - 415 QI . . i332'NlIWes ¢ i . ) . Wy e
HENTYOT A8 Nayed CESFE S REVE LTE0CHS . == _ = e “ S ONFESIES - _
22027200 D19d [0M O IPAGIHE SNV T ..m! —mg * e . / ’ LT Mavg ol dovd =

ZUSYL dVL wosn 1oarcss . ' ) . : : . . A z
NOUNVHE v sozraus : S - S ] ! o .
. . . . S K S rEsTw oNv Zaonda -
/ T . BANTY, =
wl - P/ B o NEGF I RDIS
.» / O T R e (]
AN
’ ASTHL BI VSN /
4N

. £300v0 *ETINISPIN
p ¥ oy TN

‘3 ViiEvg Cadvs f T LT *NNTOR-ST NN #
A ﬁ AN

2L

e TR
e .i%wﬁ_ e

. ~— 15 HIINGY oL
B
.

e

L....!mTf‘....‘...mz_._omxsnmﬂ. N B R )

) . .(.1711...1._%22.::
WL tw .Eamc..__ﬂ_muﬂmm . - Ln:

5+30 SEE PﬁEV.!QUS SNEET

sty

MATCHL INE ST#,

¥ KHVR. PHISNIMT . =
r_ua___u_z m.zmmzmw __ dInve .:t.E ] w

SHERY TURNEAISTY EE_F : T L
. LTS TRIONES

X B N REHLIYR ShIN TVl % S T WEEZITE T "
.Eumom.quwumm: / U3 S0HR OHDAVNAYH / L 3 »Eomnn “3nsuar _ " twmmuawzgz:g:.. A »m...m.h._..zuunzmm e a
2 T . S AN B ;

.P/._ | Lo ) .LL . .‘ ,. | ”1_....

moa&:mm&m SoAnEUIB)Y

{ehzvldavl |
- IA novtmhm




B e T T ——
140§ ITHS 2 JAVNMILTY - LIWE NOILIES WAL
<0kriy] "3 BA8 O30 SHCHLY L A8 1INES3
BINWA O LAB_huvad ONIISRAR HAVT? a3end | DU E
22027214 TV 1004 BEraRISZIE EHN T4

g £ Il
1ZNZYL YL REENw i2Inoud

NOONYHE  =3nv 103oud

J30vy2 INIZ “AAVES O3HSNMY 0 ISTEENS .9

{ALILNVID TI¥WS * LNINZAYd
313UINDD SAONIAMLIE! NOISIAOHd T¥133dS b

03079 3Nid * 13AYED OFHSNMWD 4C ISYAENS .5

(ALLINWID TWAS * IN3A3AYD
3L3HONGT STCKIRILIE NOTSIADHS I¥I23dE Wb

HITH 4VH
ONY BNOLSING ] TYBNLTIND 1NV
*H3ZI 11434 *0338 47105401 Wb

— N

Tim0 | 0200

HNI & :
CAWHIAAIS (ST TUVA s3hava

HIWHR AYH
aNY SNOLSINIT WENL RSOV
“Y3Z1NLY34 OIS 4 AULSIOL wb

P S

H2NI

S A WHIOTS
aLzEaNen | owwnr | 313HINGD IqVES 9RILSIXT
NN | s | BAND ILINYED WIILH3A LNINID
ISFIHYA ONV) TIN¥d ONYILLOL o SSvyD l.J ol . ik aMYLE0d S3tERA ONY? T3HYd
PR Y o w0-.El ; &- 51 ' o= S E2r
K]

NOTLINEESNGD

030qv49 SNi4 *I3AVES 0IHSNYD 40 3ISyHENS

ONT)
s1uv) S0

(.8E} 8uNT JLINYHS TWILLUIA




aQ: msaznxmk_m* NO' m omm Widdds

O,

o |
3

3

 NGIIOMMESNOD

-

_qu:a JJ{EW yhzugmmqm

e i ! T e e o T

=

-030v49. N1 4 TIAVHO OIHSIHD. 40 IsVEENS w9

SITHTA

QUMD ALINVES WD

w= (Gl

- ‘HINI. §
.xJﬁamm—m

:.JﬂNﬂuﬂwr

-30¥E0 ON1LSTH3

ﬁmm wm.?._. NS -mzqm
:Q m

——030vH0 INI 4 ¢ TIAVES OIHSMHI" J0- FSvAANS

~(49€)° G¥N0 3ALINVEY “TYIILNIA

zonmwmmmm.i mmbhm&m&q

{2hzvi dvi
1A ‘uopueig



ot 52

aes ¥

13 g L3HS MUANS. TUW ~1 LIS Myl R 3N = .
AOBHINT I WG OIEED SHBIVACY I (MO0, ﬁug 1333 NI 3OS MILSteS _
VININD DA HALYED NSRS THIAVET EYAGd : ] . - -
220272y 2aN0 100 USROG TN T § o = 0 AIVE DL u“% = m.m
P TeERAN 19O - :
(2HEV )L dvL sovun - Nryisd = 1M
NOONVHE v a2 15538 O Ghonad - smew
N v A¥RIALET FAOAIY = y
i I
= % LR LE T
_ | | o
e - T e V.E RYHX WIS &
AN ~— /F
~ =
— — 4 — £ el
- A
T3V v - - ™~ 7 JF 1NDHH3A 30 VIS
_ ~ AN o ’ . _ - o ~.¥ N
5 L Y§ CAVHYISYA oo
A K
# 3105 ONoHY ke o 15 BSEih
17dAL ENITERINEY MOTTAR b g
Lt [~ T
o # H = e = T33r0Ha 539
= I cl 1"2A0) SLIAIT LI%dN| " -
225 @ * ¢ “ A & 5 hd
Ak I . o = K o
U kLT | . t-. ”
5 | g 2 . i o,
W ot
=
g : 2 ITHIINN = —
i : = i o |
vz Ilm\ _Ao BB+ K \
s | [ — o - = | =
3 T - . ¥ —
i “3A13 9NI 13003 SLink % ‘lm.mwﬂmlz%%: i_"LS NCIKR ONDOZHLAOS J— f| Hm
E — Cdbll ARSS ) .. [, mosindel—
z == ]/
e i} £ i ,__VL
= WA m. /Z
m ' Sy i v i | i _.mm,.w.a
= BUETNE ¥ an i I8 ]
E] 8 _ Gt _ S5l \ i = oy B @ =
ONIE k . - o
| M S, 1°dAll JOVIRMIS ONINEVA J18VL03L3Q0 % X w
_ — g AoRs # ms .-V - o
2 PALY wla = a|2
fad =
S _ 2 g R w = L zlg
_A¥RIAI YO ION3A 13534 ONY 3ACH3E ONY 3AGHEE P’ . , E: =
Frating s SIALEML 2 JINYHAILE 99T 5314634080 I0U3 § X
B OBNYH *IM0LS ATTHIES * AN TH ¥ ¥ RYIHE *30Au3M ﬁ g =
AN arN A/ =
[ | , e ]
~ - K 5]
) E_.Ekmznnu ol Mva =
_ f Z = ANOWNEA 36 ALVIS
£ %5 WK
| $
i -
N
— 1}
»
- 1T 0eR LS

(hTvidvl
AN ‘uopueig’




M GEIE TIE L & UE SRS T

W6 8 438 HILDIS2 LI~ Z43WE NV . BB
AW NG EIT 0 SAEHYWTL 38 Jasssa £334 NI IS = —
HANTCTD SAB WAHG . ONEIS3E0 0 HEAGTT LAY s = = = ; = —
Z20LTE BUVE 10T WO I EIyN Tha - o oz ] = - g-g.

ATMEVL AL, v, | Sl o T o e Do
NOONYHE" - vtz o T B S Ly TS Do = =3y
T - . . . AR f ) : T 0 = Emum e ZACWIN = STERE

. : - . .....u..a_.mx R
. - . i
ol F{ . ..nz%md,zu_m.
_~ : / Franvt ' aawnod
p . . . AXN
# : . / ASN¥L &) YSIK. /
k ) a4
AZ0MY *NIISNISCIY
— % JNOHENY * 3TT3AT . ’,
T i . h\z .
‘ -3 ﬁu_.mwwn 35 ﬁ ._._4 A3 .=.z<o_. ,m..:su ﬂ ﬂ /
- .ﬂ.. : o IR 1 , /L
_ _ 1 Avlianfun oo : : e ;
. . M 3 3 : / CIYRTAL . . /
‘ : TINELSROTSY TN
N A T SHT3H
‘ pg._E.szmx T

g L s
SAYE: . T £
HYGE. u.._am = = b
"N : . L g
o e e e R e S L i A R e A B ey
w S AT 2

!
[
[
|
,|L

oGt : T Dbt
+ —— B—t

Ila.azmnmiuo,,
. LR

pEE

L

it
i - ‘mﬂm....lldus TN
v - : Caa - m Wi - & m@
: . / - .n_..a.\!\\\nv!li?nwff ﬂ.

o . o . . oz

o WATERLINE. STA, 5¢80 SEE PREVIOUS' SHEET

ANBIA Y]

.E?.ﬁﬁmzu_. % ”

- THHII NI < x3atem. Hing B s TSRO 0
e . BIHLIH ¥ HEHTVE ° s ummnzmm *r BL321TS [FELE (PR

m:nzmw

LH350 .Emuzw.. " w .r___._.n.mon
3N . L.

R - .wom_m nmoquz«:

.__bmﬁnzn_ uwﬁ“ 7dALE ANLTIINGD ARG T30

aon&:mmm.i mmémﬁmuq
@izl dvi

1A ‘uopueig




S0 VR LES0) 2R “Bugoyd 10 P s e By
52 MRCHEL

PeifuL ez

Sk o sucqapto Bupiaca o

TY.LOL FLVINIEST

AousBunuos -f+|%0z

TYLOLENS

wes

AHIVY IR0 YA "HVE JOLS HONI 72| L]

no'Le

NI INGOTHILYM FAOTIIAZLHM HONL Y| LT evs

oo'ss

ANV BNSOSHI LY SHM S1HM KON ¥ [l

GOOneERs

SASMIONFTIY TI0ELNOD D41

MOILYZIIROWIAMNOLIYZIEON Hgin

1920040 UORZNASUEISY NIEMODIS 188G UtUN

eLaeesl  SURSOLAHES @ mam.—d
srev-gze(zon}  0o0501A wopwsy O .

00080088
OO0ES IMEEMos WD  oLEse
il SuIOTE;  SH0EE
0a0o'ELE 08 HoL (AL RYND TISNS TINIHEAY] JITHONDD SNOMINLIE) NOISIAOYD TWID34s]  02s'o0s
owess QSR Sad BIwADUSY Tl TSR
005 06 £ CTTvM L3534 ONY JAONSY) NOISIADES TVIDSHS]  Ore'ovs
qorones X003 ANTwA 20 NOLLYAS T3 ST MoV 088
00L05'lS 2 HIeS (RLTHINDD SHUOD) NOISINOYE TIS3dS] 025008 " -
00Es did HEANAS A soERe
on'iE L m TRV NSRS 59
(YN BNS aNTRLUSONTY S00id| 057059 WoHE IONTH DNILLIETH ONY DNADINTY| 0503
jeus : RO S150d GHOVATYS ONLI3S adand a5hass SUTRTN ALUII0US DNILIISTH ONY DNOWTa]  teEle
owoes s ki SNOISONULISSTYH|  oes oot SOVANS SNINYWA TISKL0TIZA]  QTSlY
akiad i3 e SNDIS DNINOW3Y| 09509 000 HONI B HIYAEOR 3UTHINGD INSINEO QN LEed| LBk
s o5 Ed HOHOMY ONY 51504 NOIS IENLIVNDE| 1wEss aoroas HONI 5 WIvAASTIS TLFHONOS [NINED ONVILHO|  OLBLE
00075 ® 45 YAl NDIS DL fEed 0028 SEVATYS HO) B8N0 ONLISIKT S0 AN  trole
[ vrs] L 51 NOLLOF 10N 0] S¥EEe oT0ss BEND ALNTED TeTILEA oy
000008 [iI8 &2 I NFAEENSYEW MOMEL " TIHNDYE Id¥ISONYT ok L000a'LE 1 85YID "STTOHMVN HO 'SNISWE HIIYD 'S1Z7H] 4ONA 'FYHEY ZIH09
0008 L N SNV VRSN go9se aDa00 P BUFES RO LSV HAUM NISVE HOLYOEZoNDD|  QLv0S
0G'ROT LS 11 S8NEHS DNLINYISNVEL]  0sgce oosrd el ]
ooozEs va oL RS R 2008 LioHaSy gaeInNg| ooty
J— L m (8] W1 75 40 3ol gozes oB0¥E TE0VED 3N TRAYHD O3HNYD 20 wm¢mm:m. oThee
N - 1 SFENLIGRLE e avInNvES|  tEtee
weeres o | mi NYld a3 ONRIOLINO]  zEse i TSRO T )
. N IS5 (g i) AHOLYHOTEYT "HIEYS A0 NOILYAYINS HOKEMIL | 22902
0Uonn'Ts t 51 NIdOSdZ|  prEse
N 0re2s HIBEY3 20 NODUYAYTXS HONIML| ATeiZ
[ake =t 08 s Tosaol]  sTige
fdik i3 NOELYAYDXT RAGH A0S SL°E6T
COOZES 0 N INCLSIWN TvanLInowsY] ceuse
COELE NOLLYAYOXT NORRIO D 51202
200K o Egl yaFIEdEd]  sbise
D0'0005% -SlNLS N SE3EL TVNTNON SNIANTON SNTENYO CHY DNUT 10! 007102
apo i E .
- o g 0338 sLise “3oid LI HOWLAOE20] O8N AN
0 orst % s LKV SNUOSUSLVA 'ONDIW A TWNSSOUY,  LlEsre ALYINILED 1500 NOLLOMULSNOD
VoS ARoE
P 7B OZHOFHD swebeuey ® wawdopax # Duwued « Bupsaubug a1vg e A8 UDFHY wawabeue » wattopasg & Suuuglg » Guusawbug
SSLIFZG (208} GpPEOMN 'BMCORY O SQLIbES oM  OPESOIN 'Eucoey O
ZEIAR) A8 GAIVINO WD SZEL-1GG{Z0A)  86LGD 1A 'pRuBudg O NG ang KA RIS 2C186 (208 SEISDUA PRIBUKE O >
£p01-2£9 {£08) OHEDHN"RIFEE O ot ] SRS R0y DLLETHN PRIpsg D s
ON1FIHS ) 0 puiZEHE | tesiSfelzOsl COMOLATUNEE W Wsm.ﬁd
ooee-pTsizogY  0ROGO LA UdopuEN D -

 uopBuoselq senpeurayy




T ona 1Ty s

. : & B L3S 3AHYKNILR - TG NOHIS IWILL

[ZANSVL Y] #EENN 1530Hd
NOGNYHE e 13300

T e T B T RER L SMINYWAL 7A@ o3nOs3C | - - e
GINWA D148 AEYE0 ONTISTE 2 TAOVIT. L3O ﬂhg . 1334 NI 335
Z=ozsaly AING 10Td WBPAKISZZ TR T4 ms_.ﬁ Hﬂw - A

EEAL) HT AV
QN INOLEINET VENLIAIIEDY
! : - Y3ZILTS OTEE, THOSEOL Wb

_ S " ’ . M s B § ) . - ) .
daavid. S da.ﬁ UIHBIGET. A0 VRIS 8, GI0VHE 3M14 *I3AYHO IHSAND 40 ISYSENS w8l

[LNIAZAYA "STIONTHOLLE - ) ) . ‘
‘CIMYSY NOTS|AOHE ¥ 103dS o . C ) — R o ~
073 008 WL(. BI0KA- D14 . . S . . UIOVHO- IN12 4 T3AYHO UIHSMHD 0 3SYETENS o
~ LNINIAV] ONTLS1XT LNORYS ceer
) {*dAL) HOTIN AVH
0NV BNOLSINLT TYHALTIONOY
- RYIZITLHTS * QRS S TIOSHOL. o

EPNIN w0-o)) SAFERA -

[ el = e — i e o L oo
e - e s 0 T e oz 2
W i - - BB 3G e pian| e £ R £t e e
»,hn._uw-.«s_me.m ©GALLLEVAD TS Fxmemanie | :
- ZLIHINOD o TYaAnzhvE. AysHaNan [ H13INOD
. . NANAD . SNONIHNLIEY. ‘HALS|AGHL 113345 ot | SeANED ) - .
. . . (STLEVE ONY) TaNdg | mwviisoa. - dlurs. ssvag] . L : | -OHYILHOE <1 ISBIuYA ONEY TENES
i o . W02 . 054, "0 ! T b WO-a§ . TWO-.Z ;
NG1 LANGLSROD:

_ r@«%%.&m mm&wmigw
o {Zhevldyl
1A ‘uopueig




—{J30¥VHD 3Nt S

i

TIAVHD O3HSOHD J0 ISYEENS

—~030%¥83 3Nl 4 °

(NIN o0- 1) STTH¥A :
e e e e ———— Y = - ] i
—----.Q207°0)  pzoo
N _ THOND G- mfe-ee
¢ Pt TS | RLELE
. | INFHIAY uwmmuzau “ ILIIONDD
SAONIANLIE NOISIAQHd IWI23d5 b ! NI
B d1H1S SSYHO| ONYILHO4
“ ﬂ._w“wl hm— unm.u.l a_.m :G.L“._nm

3

MO 1DNEISNG]

a1

THAYHD Q3IHSNHD 40 3ISVHEENS «8

[ "dAil} HIMW AYH

ONY INQLEINI T TydnLInd 19y

Oy

~iS31MYA ONY)

RELLE!

._ﬁi ..N

FHAZ I LYAA *CIAS * 10501 b




Th R o [T © LTS SO 1 LTS N . A3 - .
SOV 3G BB SeIUTREL .00 . l33g NL 308 MILTING =
I D1 RV L ONIISIARE SAVIT sEcOMd | R = - AR OL AV =
Z02/ary EI¥0 L0 UEEREIHE TN 3V WEE IR P LR onaRE 2
RITYL VL RN | T - . A4 . RIS =
NOONYHE e aarosd N KYHIALED ) . -MOVESIL3SE =
> i ; .. L3ZEM ON¥ 3a0mSY =
B : o ; z
FIWMICTS : ‘3novEd. =

adn s

AT
k. UMD

|
P_ T ST -APvy Vnig.
ﬂ . . o A

_.— e

1=

N

MATEHL INE STA, 6+50 SEE HEXY SHEET

s 7 FINTHAILS

& WHYH. *TA0LS %ym._m_:w * QR TIRIYH ¥ NVENG Y 3eMN3r
4N ) Erd] Elid . :
_ £ . ®. - a2z M
[ r~ .
£
= R
.2 F INOWEZA 40 Jivis
=2 Lodm
o=
=’
=

17 KEeX WIS |

P

s P

| :o.n E_wumm.& ‘mm@mE&E
0 {2hzvLdvl
1A ‘uopueig




1] a0 o LIS HIITE £OLW - Z 23368 MY
ABHHIYT D FAE @EOAT SHINKTL  “AB CIMRSI 1334 HI 3735 . HIN £ —
YINTITD UE RAVED NEISIE Y WIGVT) LI DR . .E DHILSIXE = -
Z202/7U% TAING 10 © OPIDNEDME SN T W.B o oz 4 f H0v3 QL WIvE = 8-8
- 8 s5vED L FIN = B
IZNZYL YLt oxow { L T
NOONYHE  awmt aoaross’ A¥RIAFHD KOS EISH = S
/ / LIS ONV JAONZH = S3HEd
[ = 3
M . - L e i
al & 34 Pu._ [ E R
f / / Teunw T * Yoy
A
ﬂ _, LSAMI B ¥SIM /
) En
ATIMYO 4 NTIANISF 18
d FANGRLNY T3733A7
, B AN
% "3 VI8V NV N W L3 N NYDr ' 5148MD ’ , /
N AN
~ ~ = CLYalTY -
- M a TSI
o, o s o
ﬁ H AVENTYH AT TN M,
& £F) TANDDSH
_ % _# sy Aok 130
g ‘ mu_._m%.i s -
o p— eV ize L
g g arRkes 2t ' s 5
s is — H % " [T & ]
— WA 2 . N (R, ————srE 2
oncans | i [ - ,m o
A P | i . e 2
: T =
|3
-— LS E3lNE2 L b GNAGEREME
f o fole ] w
Q0+l . DD..'E ‘.vh “ &
e t . ]
¥ T g zo_zjr ..w.w ¥ : - =i " ONMOBHLAGS TR &
: -
awﬂm.v..gerlﬂtcraicrﬂtlﬁ.r.wtzdrwa. ; .m.
R et T . Sl - B SETEA &
¥ = H = ; 3 w
- B we.a gy Winiawwﬂ.nu. [l | & =
P/ S y L =
g
E

LYE808 ' LUIXHIM
47N

»
o B N

\
0
R

“S0EE DHOJYNNYH
FH

123rgud N3

ATHRTTH
L]

W CE I m _
e 3 , :
M =8 d ly - )
f= AvNIA M0 AN 3Y # _ INL) ﬁ, g ‘
/ T d ASNOL, wvve AYHYTYER
“LSNOI3E ey SaniE0 _r AYHYIYH 3
"y AHYR *NISNIT 3 LshoI3 _ TENGIE TENOSTE _ s ﬂ
w’.z TIVHIIN PNISNIP | -7 HINTR HLNE 079 "4 10V3R_ NI LEv .
AN o RIHLLYI *NIHTvR 2 _’ HYHYS *¥30M3g *r HLIAVZII3 TAIITIN
% AHLONOQ TIM0NAr | <L L136NVD *NILNVW ¥ AHVD 'H30NIE — AR ﬁ
/ Erg 4N r . SN qa,
W R

;_d A

A

-




g OO B

LGS S50 0 VORI 0615 T g B PRI SRR O
o e o

A T T I

o o ‘06008 00'es NI O e s S RN . LsEes
Qqcnm«mmm.w WLGLT ._.<EH 182 R " opuegLs - v Joem- 1A . NIV SNYGBEI WACTIEA S HoM [ slizers
reBaas _ﬁam B0005"54 BN - I LR INECELELLYAA TN LHA HONIY| - JIZ3Y8
/ Ao d " “+ B —— .
b D B S S ocano'szs - | coddeses. | L] INSTIONFTIVIGUANOD Sidavids - L1w2
| SR TYLOLENS . .
Lo | ] “ocgsirass | epenvpes | s 8- ROUVZHIROWEaNOLYZIEoN|  Liass
= = L ooess | -z | wm FNaEDSHID| | 0TS
oooogees . | tests | o | W eIV .g.088
. Teooones ceotes | oos b A1 QIDIN I HALVAR DSV T | . 88528
0o0szOZS | - - 00SERS o | ot (RLLLNVIG TIVIS ANSIIAVE SLEHINO0 SRONPALELHORIONAMoR4s] < 020008 e . | moows HOTAATVA NG NOLVAZ TR L8rInay|. 07828
- oonpaes LM w | Mn TR 25U ONYSACIWTAY HOISINQEA Teads] - overos | o] . oooezes [ - pomis IdduEMISONd|.  STRRE
00'000'ZLE - 00T00"4S N <) (SERLEHNVIALONMLENOOI) NOSINEA WIOFeS] . 0zo06: 0onzs - 0onis TONEL ONLLIESIY QNY ONIACHEY| ~ 00es
BOTOELE oaCEs T o= IEITNONGD SHIMOD KOS TMOSAS] | - 025006 oo0ad‘Ls - DOI0SE EAEDIUYW ALNTAON BNLLITSIN ONY DNNOPEY|  OT5LS.
00Ls’ oFLS v il £TE N IFNE NSNS 3pia] | Damse |eomosts” [ pewss: . ANVIENSONNYYME1ERIOS[30]  neBle
005418 aosad . | o iz 1904 GIDVAWS SNILLAS] | LoTe .‘aqeunm.mﬁ DooTLE - HOM B WIVAITIS ATHINOD INEWSI AN Izu0d] | LBl
wnies ores 1 e SNIASONILASTY]  Doseg OOUEOE 28 0D'LE HOMLS STIYMITIS IUBMONGD NSO AN TIDN0d]  B7218
wEs ATEE Lo GO ONAONIY] - - betew conigss | . oous {FOVATYS O BEND SNUSIE S0 TrAarEs]:  Tvale
oevs wes | e | - ~DRDNVONY 1504 NOIS IRNLTUVIDS]  ErEBES — .  @unoIimwue woukEN  (TE6
duders avnze w | = : i iakctont Wit . nu0ss - |- oomedhd | 1SSVISFIDHNVIN HG SNISVE HOLYS BTN A0N0"SHEN|  Z0°a00
ooooves | . ondogizs ' « . NOLomiobd Sy - 26O outEE |- Gatonks T L o LSO MM N EVE FoLY AIZE0NOD| - 07408
 ooonvis ooionLs a | W . NS O RN MOS0 0% ER S - Y ——
oS ki : o _ENRRLMASOSINY R ) T colteans | esoad . | ITeHdsvaRtasiwals . seor
oo oA o | s Sarie SN SN T b st 7 Cacw s IO UaEnNY 0 3svesns] e
00°08es 000088 =3 Mol . DU e FOWMEAVHE - ToEEge — PR e .
- - — - - y .o?uo@;ﬁn% . “.mmm—._u.d.:wmhw HOA TUEDIOYEUYINNYS] - .Dn...vbN
BRGO0 TE aomegze |t .m © (rE YNNI DSda 30 IONYNENA 02259 — - g "
— - - - - - — —+— RT3 $IeYNEACLYHOTRT HINYE JONOLAVSEHONYL|  &'h02
CO'00Y'ES, (-] pF LS NI dE NEDLIINGH — - — —
" L DU0SE DTS FLLHNE HONCUYAYDYE HONRUL | 0202
o0DO0ES - UYIO'ES [ Rl K¥1d.08d3 - - -
- —— . " .n‘ -+ ARO0S HOLVAVIXIHOGYMONES|  8:E02
gz . | o o < emoggoi] M —
i arrmer ] 0005 S - NOLLYAWDIXE HOMNOO|.  E862,
frae aposes 5o | nu | ANGISTHR AN NSESY] Y il i o AL AL T : :
p— pe o | ar py——— 1 .| . - nomoniss;~ L SANRIS ONEIENL TRAINGN SNIGNION: 'SNISENHT NV DNDETY|  0SL0E
— - —= , T s g .. Lo *NOlLdrEosad|. GHAEU
COTOZLS 2055 o8 % G338 NTIONY. 20l ENn . . -
oapes Py 06 | o . I IomErv Bilvwnvissono] 1698 ]| fre __SLVIIISI:LE0T NOLLOMRLSNDS
P ; 3B : Lo i :
LT : . o . — i e T .| wiswsBeuep-eiucwdopis »; Gunuels -« DigsswSug
R = = A o .pHMMMMMMM E EmEnm_Bw.n_ L] mM_:cmE : ZZBONO . ..m._.qn. 103 . . »mnw&ummu : 8_‘.7.&38..&. . .w,vnﬁ.zz,ﬂz&.ﬂ u
TG =l ETE TG | et o sston mRwG H oy, Ewg - ARG . Hedsiota [ seiselnd esisdneniinis o
. ClbhorisElaog]  OUEOHN'TRRA O - a0 otimams | Wwﬁ%wmmw.
40 "GN I33HS reerieleng) SOPS0IATLNE S . . . . SeceeRL iz
: aeptigrrizon . bae0 1A WBPEY O _ . o : 2
N . N A 1o2(nid JONONNSUODTY HEMERIS 168418 LolUL | A 'UopUR e i

¥

wowmwumm&m sarpeuss)fy |
‘ (¢)ievl avi

A ‘wopueig




000'€66$ 000788 0% 180D 7sU0D

(s9)y20z (199 veoe

isuawalinbal
Juelb syesp

E%O_E_om
ispedw]

- oesodindspeN




TaE o

1SNONVY-INNr

___.____zo:o_:m szoo_

: m&w&nmmﬁm m@.&mE&:\

{Zhzvl dvi
1A ‘uopuesg




(hevidvl
IA ‘uopueig

eoamwamm&m mwawmsqu




uoy mw_:mmmgm %&WE&T
{ehevidvl
LA ‘dopueig




s BT A A v e ST N

L g (107 €8 YN TVINOZINOH

VL YLt HIEHNN LDIrOud i o g il BB OAYN WRILYIA
KOONvg T DWN LI3roNd m.S 0-.0F = Wl ITIS ANLYa
“Id'QNIISIHE NVRE ¢ HIDYNVA LD3rtRId b 8 202 AmvONVS 1 3190 JIA3IAUAS
ira IACRdY AN 'ONIN ¥ SI0BNG AR QZAIAUNS
HOGNYHE 30 NHOL € T3A3T * RYNO0NS TINVRNSSY ALTYNY

1338IS H3INED 0L~

qo+11
|

ey
35IHL M GILVHOSHOOM 34Y S¥ SKOSMONd TYID34S
ONY SNOLLTAITS 3FATE HINS ONT SNOISIAZY
ANINAGANG TI¥ INONTON LAIrON Sear RO 380 wDA
BIDZ "1 0¥ W NOLLYHASINNDY A¥MHOH Tadoad
THL 48 (IACHAJY $¥ “BIDZ 03Lv0 NOILIMHLSKOD EOA
SNCALTINASS GUVONZLS SHL ONY SNYID 3SRML HIK
SNVOHI0¥ 1 HO D3ReYD 3B 02 St HOILINKLENGD

13341S HIEOHD

00+0
|

L23r0ud QN3

n
o ¥ o
a

zToT/TT/y -
SNV TVNLJIDNOD SSTUDOU-NI

SL13SMHIVSSYH
20 ULOBMUOWILG)

LR STRTUTETS

FYHSPHYH M3
30 24043

N

WeOA M3N
10 84045

21 1Zv1 dvl
NOTLYJ07 L23roud

QE0SSLUE QL

TSONIHEYN LNIN3Avd O “ 39VMIVEQ ' EUND 3LINVHED

CXTRITES ILIWINGD 40 NOILINYLSNOD IHL 3QNTIONI TIVHS 193rQ¥d SIHL ENQU L4 182530 LI3roud

"L 3LN0Y SA GNY 133uLS NOINM 40 NOILIISYIUNI IHL 30 HINOS .0EZ
ATILVHINQUDDY OL HLIMON ONIS33uI08d ONY 3NN3AY OVOMTI¥E HI¥ON ONY

133¢1S HOWMAD 40 NOILJ3SYIANI 3HL LY LITHLS NOINL NG 9NiNN[D3T ENO|LYJ07 LI3roYd

(@vod "1vOo0™D LHHTYLS NOINAO
ANVILAY 40 ALNAOQD
NOUNVHE J0 NMOL
LNHWHAOHIWI ddS0Od0dd

VLS

TARY QYOUTIVE H1¥ON 123P08S NERTE




] o 2 L33Hs 233HS ONZDFT ADDIOBAAS IYNOILNIANDD
SNYHLA SAE (A¥IZHD SNYHLA A8 O3NS0
SKYHLA 1.0 NMYH0 OWz1538E "8 WMIQYT 103arted

ZEOZAEP VALVD 1074 WBPBRIERIHZ YN 33

(2NZV] JV¥L meagwn 1a%rodd
NOONYHE v 1j3rosd

03504X3 32037 SUAANGEANTRANN:
2903 WALVAR 40 A0S = - == = =

Vit 3NOLS  oececeoeaeneeoenenonens
GOHILSIXT 183ATND

SaJvEl dwoy Iy

UYHCHYND AVOY
NIQYWI

150d 7331 3oM3d
150d d00M 3In3F
(IMELSIXI) 3033
NOLEYONNO 3

H31Ia

3203 A¥M3AHT
AIAVYD 3903 Qvoy
LNINIAYY 3003 Jv0u

SIUALYIS ONTLSIX3

ADQTOEWAS DITHIVEI0Z0L TYNOILNIANCD

IWLIMWIS OIS ©
YIHY DIMOLSH  —— enim——
AUVONIOE 101SI0 DIHOISIH  —£50 0450
LHVONNOS TYOI00I03HINY — ey ——

JHOLSTH % W3IS0 104HIaY

NNQI/LNS LYLAYH 3470 — - -— - —
SONYT 3DIANIS L5T¥OS ¥OSN  ~——— == —
YALVI WUOLS
(HHO] W3LVR HIIH J&VNIQY0 —/ —NH}——
NV Id 0007 — vt o0y —
AVLEYH 3008 2 HSI ——svnem ——
QNYT TranL AMDIEoY
VA ILSYM SNOQUYZVH = 20 ——Ze
S3I93dS Q3YIINWONT F O3MALVIYHI ——n——0o
ABYONNOE oAl WIS —-mmmrmer = —
3NCZ 433408 QNYILIA - - == — ==
3NOZ HIHING NVIHVIY  -ee—eesmmee -
AHYONN08 QNYILIR -~
SAJUNCSTY TYLNIANOYI AN

A90708MAS TYNOILIDOY ¥04 SL33HS WvL3Q 1543 335

oMLLYN NOISOuE RS
NOILYL393A-35 INNINGIY
Sv3yv a3ssnisia

WY %2340

JYM NIAGH 30NZH LIS
3N LTS

MYLEND B3LTIS

Z1Sva SA0QYVZVH Zvn F54
LHYOMNOE ALYTAOUd b —— p————
AUVONTICE AL¥AJON 19 —— » »
a7

m.k:umm 34078 e T =
V) N ApEow — —— — T
N AZAYTS et
(1) 3N ININISYI ABYHOSNRS, — — = v an = = =
(dF 3N ININISYD INNYREId - — e —

KOY NAD) s e —

BJY 3LVLS  e—————

155300V QLMD MQY SLVIS semem— e ——

WOY JLVLS J350d04d i mm e —

{SS300Y QILNT DY JLVLS 03S0J08d e o o ——
IHM AYYANNOR JLPLS o e

ANT AUYOANNQS ALNOQY e et innse

3N AYVONNGE NAOL = e

ONIHYAE QHOHD 23

AINVLSIQ TTYNYILXI AN 3
40 HLSNIT 3AuRD 1

HLIONIT EINJONVL JAEND .
40 SMIYY 3A4N3 ¥

[L400i} 40 334930 IAENI Q
=]

Yl44NS NOILYLS HOVE H
XI44N5 NOLLYLS OV3HY He
X1334d NHLYLS ¥L5

ONION3 40 LRIOd 304
DHINNID3E 40 LN a0d
3AHND 3SHIAIE 40 LNIOd Jud
3AHND ONNOdADD 40 LRIGD 324
AINTONVL 40 LNIDd 1d
AAGMD 40 HALNED 3
NOILI3SHALN 40 LNIOd td
AUALYABAD 40 LNIOd Jd

SANIT AYVANOOE
AJDTIOENAS AHYONNDS TYNC T LNIANOD

SIUd LAWHE s

TCAORTY 3NN ONIIELS s rssssisisrirss

(Z4)) INOZ WOILD3IONd YL 2000000000000000050000

30M3d HIHHYE — e @ -we—en- 48

FIN3J NOWLWIYWIE0 LIAM0Hd ——J0d——d0d

FIVALNSENS FUNLIMNYLS - -==vmrmrmr oo

0350d0¥d 1H3ATN) 1= ==-=-=-=-=ZCc

D HILID 30 MOLLQE --—-—r—e—r—e—— -

T 3NOLE 2 & & & & 4

3dEIS T2 &40 3L —B——8—D

3d07S LRD 30 d)L ——————v
S3EML¥3IS NOILINYLISNOGD 133r0dd

SNMHILYA LODAYT NV 14
aNDZ WYIN) — -- —20— -- —
AO0T0ENAS LA0AYT ® NSIS30 L3Ar0Hd

ASOTIQHRAS NOTLINULSNOD 133r0dd

3y ANS 3704 ALOILR — - — e — e —

OBSINALAITAY+INLITE - -« =+ == L3 —
IHOHIITIL+TEYY - - - — 0 —
INCHAITAL+TIBLOTE - — -- — 193 ¥V —
ANCHAZFL+IELETTE - - - — o= — 13 —
TG+ - - — - — 3 —

Ly AWy - - — .- - 2 —

el TRER: BRI - 3 —

INOHIMEL - - - — - R
(MONINN-SIFANGS) AUTLA - - - — .- — oy —

(IvTE3YT S3ILITIIN ONNOYD 3A08V

O11635) HINIS AHYLINYS - - - — -- — s —
3T EILVM - - - — - a —

MM SYD - - - — 9 —
SNOHSITRLATIEVI+OMLIID - - - — .- —1m—
INOHATTTLATTEYD - -~ — - — o —
INOHAITAL+IWLSITE - - — - — 13—
TIGVI+IMIDTT o v = vr — 330 —

AL TIGYD = -+ = v v N e

WLITW - - — - —m =

: INOHITAL = - - = -- —_n —
HMONANN-DIAND) ALLBN - - - — -- ~— non —

NOTLd1d83534 3003

53003 Aul3w03d J35040H4

“MOILYLONNY 0350-05d H1IM
NOILYNMIBNOD NI “LHM3MIND HAWW2H Kllw S3UNLV3S
0350404 ¥04 C3ISN OS5V "SIHNLYIL INILSIXI Hod
STOBAAS INIDd A3AUNS 1OVA NOMNOD 39 353AL

440 LNHS ¥31VR GSh
3Im T3

TIEILYIA QHLNOD M1
1504 I78N00/4 NS NOISL

ECS A

3704 INOHLITSL 31
dMALS  <WNLS

NOIS OIS

aNyHS gneHs

HSIO TT3LYS Lvs
GOOMLI0S J3uL <

Y3A3T HILMS JvOyTIvE Suy
TWNIS gv0yTivy Q584
Q0OM/INCLS L1504 1504

@qdonlnﬁoaoeuwo%m@hq¢ut{ux

yIRTA LI300ud WWd
U313N INDigYd g
HINIY 3TA Lt
(HIE 310HNYAH HA
xQg v 2
Q¥A HO L133WLS - 1HO n
3did BoY! Jetel
Hid NG o
LIYHOAH TAH
IALEIA B ZIIOH TOHINOD  TRHLDAH
TYINOZROH TOMINDD  TWLOH
ODOMANYH 33ML H
3ATvA ALV A8 m
W ANG MAMD e
404 An3 AND “
340 EHS SYD oS w
1564 3019 49 ©
H3TU3 S EC bl c]
F0d0%14 I3 =
3704 340D BEIINI ]
oM@ O3LVORHL L3N do¥ ®HLOG @
3704 NOILYMEBNOD  BM3D ¢
MISYE HILYD 8
annog aNg =
HHYWHINTE na a
NGILYJ01 LNIHY44V GNNoa W s

133HS LX3N NO OIUEVI HIONTT [Hanz1]
INIOd MOY J3S0dOHd Houd O
INIDd MOE ANHSIXT W2 H
13S 39 0L Nid NOY! SNat .
ANNGS Nid NOXHI N @
133 38 01 GNNag SNaNE a2
133 gNnog SNONT L ]
ININISTA AuvHOJNEL 43}
ININISVI ININVAEId [
ANINZSYE ALHLN n
LHOM 34078 us

ASTUILNI OMY “IILIL "LHOM 1971
VI3 9 3A0W3Y d34%8
13334 ¢ 3a0wW3y S3we

30M34 NOILTIYYHIC LI300Hd 404
LNIWISYI IdvISANYT ONwT
LhNGN3SYI MYLNYR ¢ TIVLSM et
LN3ATSYI ATMHOH A

TCYLNGD NOISOH3 B

ANIMISYI AYMIANG ELLEN]
INTW3SYI 2SVNIvHD ud
LNFNESYI HOLd na

1I3NNDD 2 LOENNODSIO Jxa
LNINISYI 1¥IATD nd
LNIPESYI NOLLIMYLSNOD 1SNDD
ANIFMISYI TINNYHI HY

ERLEER R 49

NT 114182530 3003 1N104

SI09WAS 2 (S3O0D) SNOILIVIAZNEAY "M°0°d

“030330 ¥ AJMYII) 0J 43sn

38 §INOHS STLON QNV SNOILYLONNY NYTd “ABVA

AYF SNYTd ND AD0T0BMAS "SISYE SHL SY3IAQD 133HS
QNIJT1 SHL "SLIZHS Nvid LI3rQud NO Q3L0W SV
NOLLWLONNY LJ3r0Hd HEW NOILYNIZNOI NI “LHOEMINT
YIAAYIR HLIM SEHNLVIS GIS0408d ¥ ONILSIXI HO4 g3sn
S A20I0BAAS 3HL "AJOTIOHAAS TYNOLLNIANOD CHYONVLS
UIADI 0L O3ONZIN S LIIHS SHL NO ASOTIOEWAS 3HE

SJHNSYIR D843

SATLETIIR ONNOUOEIANT

NOTLd1yIs3d 3003 LNICd

JI0N ON3937 ADOI0BNAS

AS0TIQENAS NY1d 1NOAYT 2543

AJ0TIOBHAS ALTTILD

STCONAS LNIOZ J1HJYHOI0JOL NOWNGD

NOIL1YRY0aN] T¥d3IN3D

LER T




TE T 0 Z0GTe ToF Ee T

¥ 40 £ 13EMs P IMLYNGILTY - 133HS MOILIES Tvdldil
SE3KLYA L %A@ 03NOS3a .
ONA15346 8 RWIAVAT 1o3r0Hd

uBPdRLEZLE TIWN T m,g

JOUHIY " 3A9 g3¥T3H0
YINTIVO "0 TAE HAVED
ZEPTAEIAY 1INVD 10

(2NZYL dv1l ‘w3 [odrokd
NOONYHE  Bww 103008d

1334 NI 31938

XX+R VIS - XX+X '¥1S

a1ing oM
NOLLISS TYOIdAL | JAILVNAILTY

30YY0 INILSix3

i
i
i
]
I
i

]
NO1ONHISNOD




WP 0T CTOOT N U St | Ha g aam T
R HILEWSI LT -] I3HS Nvld e J
SOMHLYT D A8 OO SHIMLVATL A O3NSIS3O 1334 N1 305 INILS1X3 = -
UINIYO 0 AT VRO ONATSINE B WAVI 100N | DU " A AL wIvE = -9
ZZ0Z/Z/E FALVO 107 UBR-PQEZHIZ 3rvN 313 mg—\ﬁ oF oz [} nIN = N
(DIZVL YL s 1930 s Ci
NOONYMH  =ww rozrom 1353 ONV 3ACATN = S3wdy
' \ Inonay = y
~ - [ —
P’ P_ FEECERNTR
_ - .
NPEYY CAVEYLSYA — > ¥
d arN —— &
It 4
f ﬂ o ~ . \w i
YIS 4 Zvam - — 7 INOPRIA 20 31V15
7 / ~.F 2N
e NeYY “HYEYLSYH o cra HL
; ﬂ A o ‘LS HIHAHD
_~ W 1S HIBMHI
— w18 MU IN
2 wdLSa
W H i ZU_m. Il
22 5 308 "LS NOINN. amn s B ri-X ¥
- _msﬂsm T tRE = £5n vl - wE
L ANATINE .
W. A .. ANIQIRE O3A¥ \
k= \ 5
1
W m IIIII _. HeTl — DEE T = 193 4 — - -
o ?hg:ﬁu.ﬁ«.]iq o T
w [t N SoAL € 215 a!.._.,lu.z, ; |
; o WL A TR — s L T 0 i £ A ~ = o
2 A — GNNOBHLYON N o =
B QNOSHLA0S — P AN Y
] e B0 sSLE T artT
n mwmh;w«vlh\rllllg o : T ATVMI0S
Eiz»......‘iﬂ)‘ -l S’ o 0, .
= - 7 i El e Earec %z WO X3 KOddaY P——
= A T ] HEY .Gl
g w8 AT N e i -
| g NG HEY 21 3INLdS a0 NS GG "pes
= g Sle _ _ﬂ
, .
3
_ . o / ) m
SI3LSNHL *Z JINVHALS 2T s3Il LdRdoud Mnouse a
"B OMNYH * 3MOLS ATHIHS " ONYTHHYH ® Y NvIgg ‘ 3omy3r 2
N Bl AN = "
ﬁ a _ o g 3= 3
. _ 8 I
J zIs LNGRYIA 30 3LVLS
g 5 ErL]
_ S = .
\ -
=
_ L |3
N
¥ ;
“ o
-
g |
EL
s Al _




A L I0-C LT 77

UL

El

R WUISILTY - 2 135 NG
J0UHLYTD L8 OTIW0 SEBALYNCL  uE mINOISI L334 NI IWJ5 . HIN = —
HIWED AR NMYEQ NIISINE B yAO¥ET LI3roNd el = INILSIXT = -
zz0z/ns TLYO LaTd LB IPASZILE TN W3 WSS o 0z [ / NIVE 01 Ve = -8
P MIN = N
(2NZYL dVL e r2iross / / NIViZE = L
NOONVHH  =amw Loarods N9IS LISTY = $34
/ 1353¥ QWY 3ADWIY = SIWRM
3AONIY = y
- - .
o _ F/ P/ o s

/ / 3tanv T HINHOY
AN
# / 1SNEL 81 vSiK /
AN
AT3EVD " X3TIUISLIA '
f BANDAINT * TTTIART
! . 47N
'3 ¥I01bLvd aovd T LT R OREOL S LA ’
AN /N

ezdega
hw._mw Ly
ULDAH]

5 oi= 30Nds .23 %qu e
— el oMgIng
)Y . ~
— 15 H3ILNID oL rdo%omm_vmpz ...... v

ogeqy T T T —_ N dove _

H ~ B Pl nz:omzsoml.t_l Ted o g .
e g e JEE L oL PR . _—m — e — - e = I

. eAdHO Exﬁxﬁm_wm 3 xw.z - i - S A O I 251

S s T . e
o, / 3w ...c
o wL,_.B_ d

/ WIUYD IVILNAGISIY zﬂzuxm._.bm_v\_nm
LH3804 " 143Ny ‘03 “SOHE QUOAVNNYH
.u\z / 37N
-
o
o o yis 2

suang
=

I/N

v A4V 'NISNIF % :
Y 13vH3 1A “NISNIE fL HIATYR HLINE 072
o

Sa

ﬂ

"4 1OI3H *NILYvH
MIHLLYH > ugnTvs 7

37N Erd]

% AHLOWOQ * 3woy3r _ "L LLTUNYD ‘NILYVH ./ .
i

/

5+30 SEE PREVIOUS SHEEY

DNIGUE

HYVS *¥30N3g
B ANYY *HIANIE
£V

"FOHLIBWZITI CATTTIA
/N

MATCHLINE STA.

(CERTELY




N W OF- TU-& LU T Ty SIS e tUAT oS 3l

§ 40 9 IFIMS  Z IALWNHILTY - LTS NOILDIS WAL
dOUHLYT ™) 2A8 Q3HDIHD SHIHLYH 'L AR O3NIIS30
HINVD 0L NvHD aANT15358 9 HIAYIT 1930084 .uc._gw Emﬂ .

2202/8/F FA¥O 1074 LEEdALGAMZ I T4 mg 5 = .
(ZIZYL d¥L =o8mw iaarcs D .
NOUNVHE  snww 1oarond

a30¥89 3N 3 ¥ 13aYu0 0IHSNND 0 ISVEONS o9

{ALILNYND TTVAS © INFNFAT Q3qvy¥g 3N1J3 “13AvHD (3HSOMD 40 ISvVEENS .8

3L3HINOD SNONIANLID NOISIAQHD WIS wb

w0= 1

TALLINYOO TTVRS .Fz.usm_aqm K3T0M AVH
e J1TUNOD SNONIANLIG NOISIAOND T¥I23dS Wb -9 ONY SNOLSINIT TvanLTindi v
3 “¥3Z171L1¥34 *033S ¢ TI0SdOL ¥
- I
e g B ) L LT e e I B = T
............. pzo0 | 02070 ) X
HITW AVH o =uz_oumo|a ............................
QNY INOLEIATT TWHILTNA 189V ™
“¥3ZIN1¥3 ‘0335  UOSH0L b CYTYHIIS |(SIIHVA S3luva *WMAITIS
3134INOD aNv: . . 3138INOD 30VHD DN LSEX3
INZWID | J1uLs BHND 3LINVYD V31 LY3A LN3A3D
(S318¥A ONY) 3NV ANV L0 SSVHI ANYI180d 1531H¥A_OHW  3NYd
w0-.2 R B w0~ .51 ! 0= 51 ' W85 -0

B
HOT130HISNGD

J30v40 3NIJ * 12AVHED GIHSNYD 40 ISVEENS

A ONTY
53 0N

tugEl BYNZ JLINYED TYI[LH3A




L TCOT/CTF TP QSIah EEA L 1
U ¢ i3S W2LIHS 271 -1 L3S NYId e —
JOMHL D8 QEN0EHD SASHLWNCL 8 O3MDISIO 133 Wi Tivas N1 1SIX3 ---
IO "D 4G NAYHO NIIS340 g 4A0V3T L930ud | XU mane = =] WIVE 01 XOVE 8-8
Ay BIvE 10V WBP DG VN T4 WBmS » oz 0 i N
(Z)NZV] VL wEeWIN L33osd csvas NI¥L3Y 134
NOTONYHE  smive 10300wd M NolS i3s3 53y
L3534 ONY IAONIH = S3Iuey
- , E AYUZA L0 IAONTY = ¥
o -
P# P” mem AWHIAIS TNIo3T NOTS
H ﬂ # N A3¥
ﬁ . X
arvyE “RYEYISYA T~ L4 XXX VLS kS
AN -~ 7 F
e i
e . o
| ) \ , T T~ 3 o
o ¥I3nvd © Zvan o o e 7 E s INOWYMIA 40 3LYLS
_ AN Pﬂ _ . ~g &4 FIC]
N ;
o nreg *peuvise iy cre HL
_ 13538 .p _ 2 L5 HISNHI
d0au 13538 dAD 3N W3IINID MOTISA b
| N i
o= 2 2
- 3 > . B 133r08d N1938
AvWIAIEG B M 2 T"ahlr SLTATT LovanT . .\
zz B # ﬂ i ~ 5 & - =
_ aeing N L - & - ...,.._. P
=l B2n ¢ = F: L
E oN0INA & U3AY,
wvi - "
= 3
g . : = A HIHHTH I H ey
H L\\
2 a0+5 \ ooy — \ —oo.,,n — ONADBHLYON i el L e
Fy + W
5 ﬁ C"dil) 3113903 SLTAR % - (@A} IS NOINA T ONDBH1DS —~r ; L
4 " T-arll FIVHSS0ED QH0ISLL1d 0L
= - I
2 ) g
o £
= )
= S \ HIOHYS \ s
=z HIHOd . % F
|3 H .
5 .m_mSim ) E owgmng Hv .8 S b @ i @ %v
= L h Sl= W Ee T = gapvd >
3 4 NG s33ML T g
3 _ m FRaTEE] m ETTET] C"dhl) 3OVAEAS ONINEVA 31gv103130 &
of» LYNZAIHD ol , = P
= als
% LITHLSNOI R hd HOIS_L3Sgw - 3 Ed
AYH3ALHA ToW33 13538 GNV FAONIY GNY 3ACH3E P_/ 3 &
TONEL5N0D Y ST ‘7 TINVHIILS *217 S31183d0Ud INO¥IT & =
NV f IHOLS _»N.E_xm * ARV VR % v NvI¥g *30maar i 8 x
ar AR SN E -
ATANATTR _ = _ b - ' = -t
LONGLENO I - ~ ._ : £l
. g e
_ TOMELENGS 38 M_W &
H N = INOMH3A 40 LVIS
_ £ AN
=
| -
z
_ N | #
N N
_ '
_ o
~ . 17 XX+X V1S
» W
o W i
- f
- .




f A L L L S L

T i 8 133ns HILTAS 2°077¥ = 2 L33 Nvd
SOMHLYT ™D A8 ORAIIHD SUFHAYATL 4B OINDIS3E 1334 Ml WIS . N3N = —_
HIIVA  ag MEVHD ONITIS2E '8 WIAVET LOArCHd 2 e ONILSLX3 ---
o2/ 3L L0M ] MSS o 6z o f / ¥ve 0L wvE = 8-
(ZNZYL Jd¥] =wsewnw Liarosd S5vud AIN = N
HOONYYE v somroes , \ EmL
00 2 AVHIAIEQ ' NQIS LISH = 534
/ _/ 1353 QNV 3AOM3M = S3ueH
o Wivm3a1g . 3hONH = H
ol P/ 3y P/ [EECERRTIE
, StunvT *yINHOY
N
/ . / ISTRL BT VSIM / '
AN
A30EYQ 4 ¥TIENIST 1A
’ 5 ANCHINY 1 3113471 /
. . 2N
*3 VIdiElvd ‘NIvig W LT R NYOr YS11H0D ’ ’ /
EZd] ‘ N
3104 ONnouy " - -
~ - NTvAI0TS ﬂ / /
a o = o
AVAIATH]
‘ ,ﬁ 1ON81SNGI3Y AVAATYM
1INFLSNODIH

AVMIA I HT
FRRENERER]

I

I
ﬁ \ [
_ BYOD -2 \ orgng

oMaIng

—— 15 H3IN3IZ 0L

: 00+8  TTgrl IN(3903 3iimM b . 0%

0o+11
ks } ) T day)
¢} - 2 — oI T STTYM HOFHLNGS — ._

1S NOINA : R TIEISHI 3 ONNDGHLNDS a3avd ECIERE

%
]
e A T

: — T RE . s

A IR

e
m!mnﬁ : E@N.

i

| vt |3
5

e 5 ENIQURE AL
o il S M Le 3 ELCER]
/ aniGng f Se = ™ 8s
P i
/ AV N TV TiAA Y
JESTREN] =ISNGD3Y TORELSNOT Y /
Y AMYA 'NISNIM g
_’ ’.z TAVHIIA PNISNAP | | Y HINTVA HINH 070 "3 [OLIH_“NILYYRA
4N o) AIHLLYH “H3NTvH 2 / HYHYS ‘ H3an3g
14350H ¢ LHANSTN D3 "S0UE OHOIYNNYE % »:._.ozomz IM0E3r L LLIHEVY “NILEVI ® AUV TUIONIY
EX / N E AN _, N
AVAIAl 6O d A AT
= L3300ud ON3 TONEE SERET ML) TongLsRoT
o TONELENO I =
1 AVMIAT P/
TIHISNGo 3
1
iS5
a7

Avp3Alyg
1JELENUJEY
POHLISVZIE ‘A3TTA
AN

[TdAL} JNITHALNIT KOTT3L Wb

5450 SEE PREVIOUS SHERT

MATCHL INE STA.




W T TUZ TI0T/ T, Do P Sonl s s TR S Joat AT

[ JE] & L3S
SOURLYT ") A8 (3A03HD
YPNIVG "0 FAB KAYHa
ZzZaz/ase E1v0 L0

£ BAUYREILW ~ LIFHS NOILIZS AL
SM3BLYA 'L A8 O3n3S30

NI TSHRiH 8 IV LIIr0Nd
UBPrAXLSZIE YN T3

WIEENNN AT3MON
YINYN. LO3r0Hd

(2Nzvl dvl
NOanNYHE

1335 NI 3TIs

{'dAl} HOMt AVH

ONY 3NOLS3WIT TYHENLIND 189V

~ t¥3Z17114834 4335 * 7105400 Wb

Q3avy9 3INIA ' T3AVYD J3HSNYI JO 3Svaans .9

UH3RIAYL SNONIARLIE
13%¥SH NOISIAOHL T¥123d48
0r9°006 MIL1I BIO0NN Oivd

— LNININYd INI1LSIXT LNORYS

['NIK oG-.12 S31YTa

a20%49 IN13 *13AYHS 03HSNED 40 3SvVEsns w8l

G30vHD 3N13 “I3AVED OIHSOE2 J0 35vE8ans .9

ONY INQLSZEWIT IVERLTNDSY
ﬂ 'Y3Z171LY3d G335 ' NESHeLl Wb

{'dAdl

||||| e - i -

e, -1 0200 Lt A B L R— TW 0 o0 -

=TI 17~ HONE-§ - B REEE

¥TAA0IS | L LALILNYOD VRS S YRGS

T17IN0D LNIWIAYE ILIEINOD 3LIHINDD

i SNONINALIGH NOISIAGHE T¥ID3dS ob e
1SIIUVA ONW) T3Nvd ONYILHDd  |al5LS SSYHg dT¥LS SSVMO! ONVILNOd | (ST1UvA QMW T3NVY

0.2 W0-.5 u0-.§ «0- &1 0= 0= W0-.8 “0-.2

NO}LINELSNDD

HITW AvH




P} C ARG AC AL L DS PR L) &

140 o L33 HOLIXS € °1Tv -1 1IMS Mvd B e —
OUHLYT "2 AR OIHTENT SWIHLVN 'L g OINHSIT 1334 Ni 3WIS . INIL51XT =
LHATITO T AT NAWED ONT 1S3V § TAaYET 1oaroyd | 2T e - -
zZoz/B/v FAUND L0 L6P"PASZHZ 13NVN T3 mS oF 0z o HYE 04 YR = 8-g
5 s5vuD W3 = N
2NVl Y1 ™H3ennN 133rond NIYiZH = 13y
NOONYHE  w=mww 1o3roud N AVA3ALHG NOLS L3534 = 53y
L3534 ONv 3AQN3Y = S3ueY
. . .
#L H.._ mﬁ FRZELIES I = ¥
a o [ TERERETLY]
) A% EBE] 315
f | , .

arYy *AYHTISYH ~— L¥ XX4X VES fy

# N -7 5

~ R

- il

J # _ o —-—_ /. *
o ¥IIRVd ¢ ZvHi o o ™~ 7 Z INOWHIA 20 3LVLS
_ o P# a _ firvy *pyavISm F A
m\zm L aR £re HL
_ _ LS HOMOHD

DROING

EEGETESHRER]

O0+E —— gNnogHLUON

“04H

s N THITH]

1J3r0Yd NI938

15 NOTHA

* ONNOEHLNOS ——

e A

MATCHLINE STa. 5+80 SEE€ NEXT SHEET

uog
== [ Al e |
< o aNIGIng H5Y 2 B
= _ Gia _
ANTEN, AvuyIvy
TSN 3 “LSHOD m_
AVHIALHO %
TSNDD3H _ %
HOXNYH *3H0LS m ATTHIHS * GNY TN
AN L
“ w * .
- -
_ »
-
" _
s
g
o _

R i T e e RSO e e, A A

5.5

331
ELUTTER
S3315NYL "Z JINVHLALS
% ¥ NVIEE ‘E0Muar
AN

s
EF]
JaM34 13834
MY SAOAAY

3381
Al

B iy ]

{"dx1) 33¥IHNS
ONINHYE 318¥133130

*277 S3TLY3d04d 3M0HAr
E

17 XX+X CYLS

["dAL) ¥ TPMsS0yd

—~

INONYSA 40 3ALVIS
d/N




W T T LU e TIF T RGO L AR

BEEEE S WILFHG €1 ~ 2 L1335 Hrld
JOMIUYT 3 HE QPO SHBLMCL  UE gaNSI0 1333 NI_3T70S AN = —
EWWOC a8 Mavad ONTISRIS 8 WAV 1930084 “our! f——= =] ! ONILSIXT = ---
2BV ELVY L0 uBP IPARZIHZ INYN IS WSS & o2 4 / / ¥J¥g 01 ¥ovd = 8-8
(ZN2YL dvL temenm wrovs \ S8THD . v 1w
NOONYHE s ra3rosa m AYRIAIHE / N915 1353 s3y
/ b= / 13539 OWY TAOW3Y S3wey
e TAOHIY ]
/ o gmﬂm HIVNITIS o
ONZETT WAl
LS , Al A3 P/ . s
# / 1RV “YINHOY
. E|
J / 180YL 81 v /
E
AZEVO * AIFANISTIM
ﬂ T ANOHLNY | 37173AY1 /
. X AN
3 ¥IT1uLYd * Hav g T L3 M ONVOr *$1iung # / /
AN N

o o

—_—
—
i ——

Oln
BY0E) 2
— g paliep i)
-1
e e e e s "INQTJ -I_M-ﬂi
—— "1S ¥IIN3Z QL T .
aTE GHADER: -

00+01i " poee o0+8 00+L o0+
} + + T B N3
! "LS NOFNM L AYRNIVH T 3534 ONMOEHLAOS —  G3avd

»
e B A L

"INAD

; FEIhi TN, D
L & : LS &
" Emee B 8.
o Twz.m o

L1Y3E0H * LHIWNIW "0 "$GEE JUUIVNNYH
470 4 _/ AN
/L L33roud gN3
L%
AY#YTVN
LSNOD 3y
. I
VIS
a2 :

7
oMETnE 8 S= 3341
Ex AYBIA{UE ELTHER
/ AVIIATHE f e
~ISNOD TS AvnaR
. s3A1Ha
v AUV CNISNIr T LSHOD R _ RELRED] /
5 THRDIN NISNIF ) BINTA KLY 0/ 4 10IER NI LavH
A7N o AIHLLYM *HINTVR 7 /
7 AALONDA PIAONIF [ tL L13HEYD ‘NILuwH
/ AN AN
- ) ) ﬁ ® /
N -
|

MATCHL INE STA.

5+50 SEE PREVIOUS SHEET

H
TV, srjng # _
o TINTIENOD "
AVHIAING
L RE P _
YAV ATH U4
= SROTTY TLSHOUY _
HYEYS *¥30N3Q P OHLIAVZITE ‘ARTNE
* i, iz i _L
o




JOB Brandon, V1 Union Street Sidewalk Reconstucion preject
. {1 Randolph, VT 05060  (802) 728-3376
mBOlS‘ & S.Burl, VT 05403 (802} 878-7681 SHEET NO. OF
E‘,Klrg.m, O Bedford, NH 03110 (603) 8371043
1 Springfield, VT 05156  (802) 591-4328 CALCULATED BY: BMB DATE:  04/06/22
O Laconia, NH 03246 (503} 524-1186
Engineering # Planning # Development « Management CHECKED BY: CDL PATE: __ 04/08/22
SCALE:
CONSTRUCTION COST ESTIMATE
ITEMNO. |DESCRIPTION UNIT | QUANT. | UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
201,10 CLEARING AND GRUBRING, INCLUGING INDIVIDUAL TREES AND STUMPS LS 1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00
203.15 COMMON EXCAVATION cY 1000 $15.00 $15,000.00
203.16 SO0LID ROCK EXCAVATION cY 50 $100,00 $5,000,00
204.20 TRENGH EXCAVATION OF EARTH cY 590 $25.00 $17,260.00
204.22 TRENCH EXCAVATION OF EARTH, EXPLORATORY (N.AB.L) cY 1 $75.00 $75.00
204.30 GRANULAR BACKFILL FOR STRUCTURES oY 890 $30,00 $20,700.00
301.26 SUBBASE OF CRUSHED GRAVEL, FINE GRADED cY 540 $40.00 $21,800,00
404,65 EMULSIFIED ASPHALT CWT 15 $100.00 $1,500.00
601.2615  |18" CPEP(SL) LF 1010 $45.00 $45,450.00
604.10 CONCRETE CATCH BASIN WITH CAST IRON GRATE EA 4 $4,000,00 $16,000,00
604412  |REHAB. DROP INLETS, CATCH BASINS, CR MANHOLES, CLASS | EA 4 $1,500.00 $6,000,00
616.21 VERTICAL GRANITE CURB LF 1430 $50.00 $71,500.00
616.41 REMOVAL OF EXISTING CURB (FOR SALVAGE) 1F 1230 $7.00 $8,510.00
618,10 PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE SIDEWALK, & INCH sY 710 $90.00 $63,800.00
618.11 PORTLAND CEMENT GONCRETE SIDEWALK, 8 INCH Y 150 $110.00 $16,500.00
618.30 DETECTABLE WARNING SURFACE SF 30 $50,00 $1,500.00
619.20 REMOVING AND RESETTING PROPERTY MARKERS EACH 2 $500,00 $1,000,00
620,50 REMOVING AND RESETTING FENCE LF 120 $10.00 $1,200.60
628.35 PVC SEWER PIPE LF 50 $75,00 $3,750.00
629.20 ADJUST ELEVATION OF VALVE BOX EACH 13 $200,00 $2,600,00
629.33 PLASTIC WATER PIPE, RIGID LF 50 $60.00 $3,000.60
630,15 FLAGGERS HR 800 " $35.00 $28,ooo.od
633.10 CPM SCHEDULE EACH 2 $500.00 $1,000.00
636.11 MOBILIZATION/DEMOBILIZATION Ls 1 $50,000,00 $50,000.00
641.11 TRAFFIG CONTROL, ALL-INGLUSIVE Ls 1 $25,000,00 $25,000.00
646.201 4 INCH WHITE LINE, WATERBCRNE PAINT LF 1480 $1.00 $1,480.00
846.2111 |4 INCH WHITE YELLOW, WATERBORNE PAINT LF 1490 $1.00 $1,400,00
646 241 24 INCH STOP BAR, WATERBORNE PAINT LF 20 $3.00 $60.00

Estimate




Du

Randolgh, VT 05080 (802) 728-3376

JCB Erandon. VT Unioh Street Sidewalk Reconsiruction project

BOiS S. Burl., VT 05403 (802} B78-7661 SHEET NC. OF
e, O Bedford, NH 02110 (B03) 637-1043
Sl(lrlg O Springfield, VT 051668 (802) 591-4328 CALCULATED BY: BMB DATE:  04/06/22
0 Laconia, NH 03248 (803) 524-1185
Engineering # Planning » Development # Management CHECKED BY: CDL DATE: __04/08122
SCALE:
646.311 CROSSWALK MARKING, WATERBCRNE PAINT LF 90 $6.00 $540.00
851,15 SEED LB 40 $15.00 $500.00
851.18 FERTUILIZER L 80 $5.00 $400.60
651.20 AGRICULTURAL LIMESTONE TON 0.4 $800.00 $320.00
£51.35 TOPSOIL cY 90 $45,00 $4,050,80
652,10 EPSC PLAN s 1 $2,000.00 $2,000.00
652.20 MONITORING EPSC PLAN HR 40 $60.00 $2,400.00
652.30 MAINTENANCE OF EPSC PLAN (N.A.B.L} Lu 1 $2,000,00 $2,000.00
653.10 HAY MULCH TON 0.4 $800.00 $320,00
656.50 TRANSPLANTING SHRUBS EACH 10 $100.00 $1,000.00
656.65 LANDSCAPE WATERING MGAL 1 $100.00 $100,00
656.80 LANDSCAPE BACKFILL, TRUCK MEASUREMENT cY 10 $100.00 $1,000,00
656.85 TREE PROTECTION LS 1 $2,000.00 $2,000,00
672.20 TRAFEIC SIGN, TYPE A 8¢ 20 $20.00 $400.00
675,341 SQUARE TUBE SIGN POSTS AND ANCHOR LF 30 $15.00 $450,00
675.50 REMOVING SIGNS EACH 1 $15.00 $15.00
675.60 RESETTING SIGNS EACH 1 $30.00 $30.00
675.61 SETTING SALVAGED POSTS EAGH 1 $175.00 $175.00
690,50 PRICE ADJUSTMENT, FUEL (M.A.B.L) LU 1 $1.60 $1.00
900.620  |SPECIAL PROVISION (CORING CONCRETE) EACH 2 $800.00 $1,600.00
900.640  |SPECIAL PROVISION (REMOVE AND RESET WALL) LF 80 $55.00 $4,850,00
900.880  |SPECIAL PRGVISION (BITUMINOUS CONCRETE PAVEMENT, SMALL QUANTITY) TON 80 $225,00 $18,000,00
L
SUBTOTAL | | | $477,000.00
20%|+/- Contingency’ $95,000.00
ESTIMATE TOTAL $572,000.00

Mote:

In providing opinions of probable construction east, the Clhent understands that D&K has no control over the cost or availability of labor, equipment or materials, or over market condltions or
the Contractor's methed of pricing, and that our Opinion of Probable Construction Costs are made on the basis of our professionat judgment and experience. DEK makes no warranty,
expressed or implled, that the bids or the negotialed cast of the Work will not vary from the Opinion of Probable Construction Cost provided herein,

Estimate




JOB Brandon, VT Union SIreet Sigewalk Reconstruclion project

Randolph, VT 05060  (B02) 726-3376

DJBOiS éll 8. Burl,, VT 05403 (6802) 878-7661 SHEET NC. OF
C. O Bedford, NH 03110 (603) 637-1043
SK'“Q M Springfield, VT 05156 (802) 591-4326 CALCULATED BY: BMB DATE:  04/06/22
O Laconia, NH 03248 (603) 524-1166
Engineering # Planning # Development & Managament CHEGKED BY: chbL DATE: _ 04108122
SCALE:
CONSTRUCTION COST ESTIMATE

ITEMNC. |DESCRIPTION UNIT | QUANT. | UNITPRICE AMQUNT
201,10 CLEARING AND GRUBEBING, INCLUDING INDIVIDUAL TREES AND STUMPS s 1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00
203.15 COMMON EXCAVATION cY 1300 $15.00 $19,500,00
203.16 SOLID ROCK EXCAVATION cY 70 $100,00 $7,000.00
204.20 TRENCH EXCAVATION OF EARTH cY 830 $25.00 $20,750.00
204,22 TRENGCH EXCAVATION OF EARTH, EXPLORATORY (N.A.B.L) cY 1 $75.00 $75.00
204.30 GRANULAR BACKFILL FOR STRUCTURES cY 830 $30,00 $24,600,00
301.26 SUBBASE OF CRUSHED GRAVEL, FINE GRADED oY 200 $40.00 $11,800.00
404,65 EMULSIFIED ASPHALT cwWT 15 $100.00 $1,500.00
601.2615  |18" CPEP(SL) LF 1200 $45,00 $54,000,00
604.10 CONGRETE CATCH BASIN WITH CAST IRON GRATE EA 8 $4,000,00 $24,000,00
604.412 REHAB. DROP INLETS, CATCH BASINS, OR MANHOLES, GLASS | EA 4 $1,500.00 $6,000.00
616.21 VERTICAL GRANITE CURB LF 50 $50.00 $2,500.00
616.41.  |REMOVAL OF EXISTING CURB (FOR SALVAGE) LF 1230 $7.00 $8,610.00
618,10 PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE SIDEWALK, 5 INCH Y 710 $100.00 $71,000.00
618.11 PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE SIDEWALK, 8 INCH sY 150 $120.00 $18,000,00
618.30 DETECTABLE WARNING SURFACE SF 30 $50,00 $4,500.00
619.20 REMOVING AND RESETTING PROPERTY MARKERS EACH 2 $500,00 $1,000,00
620,50 REMOVING AND RESETTING FENCE LF 120 $10.00 $1,200.00
€28.35 PVC SEWER PIPE LF 50 $75.00 $3,750.00
629.20 ADJUST ELEVATION OF VALVE BOX EACH 13 $200.00 $2,500.00
629.33 PLASTIC WATER PIPE, RIGID LF 50 $60.00 $3,000.00
630,15 FLAGGERS HR 800 $35.00 $28,000.00
633,10 CPM SCHEDULE EACH 2 $500.00 $1,000.00
635.11 MOBILIZATION/DEMOBILIZATION LS 1 $50,000,00 $50,000,00
641.11 TRAFFIC CONTROL, ALL-INCLUSIVE LS 1 $25,000,00 $25,000.00
646,204 4 INCH WHITE LINE, WATERBORNE PAINT LF 1500 $1.00 $1,500.00
46,2111 |4 INCH WHITE YELLOW, WATERBORNE PAINT LF 1500 $1.00 $1,500.00
B46.249 24 INCH STOP BAR, WATERBORNE PAINT LF 20 $3.00 $80,00

Estimate




-
DU_BOIS S. Burl, VT 05403 (802) 875-7861 SHEET NO.

JOB Erandon, VT Union Street Sidewalk Reconstruction project

O Randolph, VT 05060 (802) 728-3376

E,](]rlgmc, O Bedford, NH 03110 (803} 8371043 o
O Springfield, VT 05156 (802) 591-4326 CALCULATED BY: BMB DATE: _ 04/08/22
O Laconia, NH 03248 (803) 524-1166 ’
Engineering @ Planning # Development ¢ Management CHECKED BY: CDL DATE: __04i08122
SCALE:
646,311 CROSSWALK MARKING, WATERBORNE PAINT LF 80 $6.00 $540.00
851.15 SEED LB 80 $15.00 $1,200.00
651.18 FERTLILIZER LB 150 $5.00 $750,08
651.20 AGRICULTURAL LIMESTONE TON 0.6 $800.00 $480.00
651.35 TOPSOIL cY 180 $45.00 $7,200.00
652.10 EPSC PLAN L5 1 $2,000,00 $2,000.00
652.20 MONITORING EPSC PLAN HR 40 $60.00 $2,400.00
852.30 MAINTENANCE OF EPSC PLAN {N.A.B.1) L 1 $2,000.00 $2,000.00
853,10 HAY MULCH TON 0.6 $800.00 $450.00
656,50 TRANSPLANTING SHRUBS EACH 10 $100.00 $1,000,00
656.65 LANDSGAPE WATERING MGAL 1 $100.00 $100.00
656.80 LANDSGCAPE BACKFILL, TRUCK MEASUREMENT cY 10 $100.00 $1,000.00
656.85 TREE PROTECTION ] 1 $2,000.00 $2,000.60
672.20 TRAFFIC SIGN, TYPE A SF 20 $20.00 $400,00
675.341 SQUARE TUBE SIGN PQSTS AND ANCHOR LF 30 $15.00 $450,00
675.50 REMOVING SIGNS EACH 1 $15.00 $15.00
675.80 RESETTING SIGNS EACH 1 $30.00 $30.00
675.61 SETTING SALVAGED POSTS EACH 1 $175.00 8175.00
690,50 PRICE ADJUSTMENT, FUEL (N.AB.L) L 1 $1.00 $1.00
900,620 SPECIAL PROVISION (CORING CONCRETE) EACH |- 2 $800.60 $1,660.00
900.620 SPECIAL PROVISION (RECONSTRUCT WALKS/STEPS) EACH 12 $1,000.00 $12,000.00
800.640 SPECIAL PROVISION (REMOVE AND RESET WALL) LF 90 $110.00 $9,800.00
900.680 SPECIAL PROVISION {BITUMINOUS CONGRETE PAVEMENT, SMALL QUANTITY) TON 90 $225.00 $20,250,00
| |
SUBTOTAL $461,000.00
20% +/- Contingency' $92,000.00

ESTIMATE TOTAL

$553,000.00

Note:

Irs providing opinions of prabable construction cost, the Client understands that D&K has no contral over the cost or. availability of 1abar, equipment or materials, or over market conditions o
the Contractor's method of pricing, and that our Opinion of Prebabla Construction Costs are made on the basls of our professional judgment and exparience. D&K makes no warranly,
expressed or Implied, that the bids or the negotlated cost of the Work will nct vary from the Gpinlon of Probable Gonstruction Cost provided hereln,

Estimate




RESOLUTION
BOND ANTICIPATION NOTE

Wastewater Facility Upgrade

On the 9th day of May, 2022 at a duly warned meeting of the Select Board of the Town of Brandon in the County of
Rutland and State of Vermont the following action was taken:

Upon Motion duly made and seconded, it was approved that the Town of Brandon borrow an amount not to exceed
$1,000,000, at a rate of 3.15% from Bar Harbor Bank & Trust. It was further resclved that said borrowing shall be for the
purpose of funding cash flow for USDA bond for the Wastewater Facility Upgrade approved by voters at Town Meeting
March 2, 2021.

It was further resolved that the Treasurer and at least a majority of the legislative body of the Select Board shall have
the authority to act on behalf of the Town of Brandon in executing any notes or other documents as may be required to
consummate the loan transaction contemplated by this resolution. It was further resolved that the Town of Brandon
shall be bound by the terms and conditions of such Notes or other documents.

The Board authorized Susan Gage, Treasurer to borrow on this loan on behalf of the Select Board.

Select Board, Town of Brandon

By all or a Majority Thereof: May 8, 2022

Seth Hopkins

Mike Markowski

Brian Coolidge

Tracy Wyman

Tim Guiles



05/05/22

TOWN OF BRANDON Accounts Payable

Page 1 of 4

03:18 pm Check Warrant Report # 63549 Cuxrent Prior Next FY Invoices Jacolyn
All Invoices For Check Acct 0Ll{l0 General Fund} 05/09/22 To 0B/09/22
Inveice Invoice Descripticn Amount Check Check
Vendor Date Invoice Number Account Paid Numbar Date
301024 AAR POLICE SUPPLY 04/25/22 ammo 10—-5-14-30120 1057.00 50891 05/08/22
11342 Prefessional Supplies
200263 ALDRICH & ELLIOTT, PC 05/01/22 WWIF-Final Design 20-5-60-20130 2834.28 50892 05/0%/22
80562 WW Final Design
200263 ALDRICH & EBLLIOYTT, PC 05/01/22 Wewton PS=final design 20-5-65—-20010 10310,00 50893 05/08/22
80579 Newton PS5 Study
100015 ALLEN ENGINEERING & CHEMI 04/22/22 chlorine 20-8-55-50120 780.80 50894 05/098/22
11250142001 Sodium Hypochorite
100015 ALLEN ENGINEERING & CHEMI 04/29/22 chlorine 20-5-55-50120 334.40 50894 05/05/22
11250147501 Sodium Hypochorite
311089 ALNWICK, AIDAN 05/02/22 reimb for K9 supplies 10-5~14-40440 132.48 50895 05/0%/22
MAY 2022 Police Dog Expenses
31L0z8 AMERICAN LEGION POST #55 04/29/22 appropriation 10-5~25~70170 250,00 50896 05/08/22
MAY 2022 American Leglon Post #55
310590 AMERICAN WINDOW CLEANING 04/29/22 april windows 10-5-22-43100 50.00 50897 05/05/22
6630 Town Office
300541 ARC RUTLAND AREA 04/29/22 appropriation 10-5-25—-70330 875.00 50898 05/08/22
MAY 2022 ARC of Rutland
100245 BRANDON AREA CHAMBER OF C 04/29/22 apperpriation 10~5~-25~70140 250.00 50899 05/09/22
MAY 2022 Chamber of Commerce
100305 BRANDON AREA RESCUE SQUAD 04/29/22 appropriation 10-5-25-70130 7000,00 50800 0B/09/22
MAY 2022 Brandon Rasoue Squad
100255 BRANDON FIRE DISTRICT #1 04/29/22 appropriation 10-2-00-02136 74137 .50 50801 05/09/22
MAY 2022 Fire District Payable
100275 BRANDON FREE PUBLIC LIBRA 04/29/22 appropriation 10-5-25-70470 TB66. 67 50502 05/09/22
MAY 2022 Brandon Ilibrary
100625 BRANDON INDEPENDENCE DAY 04/29/22 appropriation 10~5--25-70110 1500, 00 50503 05/09/22
MAY 2022 BIDCC -4th of July Com.
100280 BRANDON LUMBER & MILLWORK 04/20/22 pliers 20~5-55—43160 39,98 50204 05/00/22
930186/3 Maint, Supplies — Genexal
100280 BRANDON LUMBER & MILLWORK 04/20/22 ratchaet, hose 20-5-55—-43160 35.76 50204 05/09/22
93024773 Maint, Supplies - General
100280 BRANDON LUMBER & MILLWORK 04/21/22 tie-dgwns 10-5-22-43120 39,87 50604 05/09/22
930330/3 Municipal Mowing-maint
100280 BRANDON LUMBER & MILLWORK 04/26/22 bulbs 10-5-22-43180 23.98 50204 05/0%/22
831059/3 Maint. Supplies Bldgs.
100280 BRANDON LUMBER & MILLWORK 04/30/2% pruners, trash bags 10~-5-18~30070 88.56 50004 05/09/22
231600/3 Little League Expenses
100280 BRANDON LUMBER & MILLWORK 05/03/22 chareeal 10-5-22-43100 19,99 50904 05/09/22
£32084/3 Town Office
310688 BRANDON POLICE DEPT 04/21/22 postage 10-%-14-30132 43,74 50905 05/09/22
AEBR 2022 Postage Expenses FPD
100310 BRANDON SENIOR CITIZENS C 04/2%/22 appropriation 10-5-25-70480 1125.00 50906 05/09/22
MAY 2022 Seniox Citizen Center
301085 BROWN, TYLER 04/12/22 beaver removal 10-5~-15-20240 242,00 50907 05/09/22
04122022 Contractors
310712 CELEBERATION RENTALS, INC. 07/28/22 ternts for Carnival 10-5~18-61050 2729.20 50908 05/09/22
20565 Brandon Carnival
301503 CHBMPLAIN VALLEY FUELS 04/18/22 heating fuel @ HWY 10-5~22-42110 99.29 50909 05/09/22

695599

Heating Fuel



05/05/22 TOWN OF BRANDON Accounts Payable

Page 2 of 4

03:18 pm Check Warrant Repoxrt # 63549 Current Prior Mext FY Invoices Jacolyn
All Invoices For Check Acct 01{1C General Fund) 05/09/22 To 05/09/22
Invoice Xnvoice Dascription Amount Chack Check

Vendor Date Invoice Number Account Paid Number Date

100411 CIJKA, STEPHEN J 05/04/22 reimburse for postage 20-5-55-20121 16,10 50810 05/098/22
05/04/22 Professional Services

1900411 CILJKA, STEPHEN J 05/05/22 bags 20-5-55-30120 9.38 50810 05/09/22
05/05/22 Professional Supplies

310703 CITY HALL SYSTEMS, INC. 03/31/22 cC — March 2022 10-5-18~30070 1456.15 50911 05/09/22
18378 Little League Expenses

310097 COMCAST 04/27/22 service 05/04 -~ 06/03 10-5-14-42100 422,31 50912 05/09/22
PD D4/27/22 PD Telephone Service

310097 COMCAST 04/27/22 gervice: 05/04 - 06/03 10-5=-10~-42100 607.49 50913 05/09/22
TC 04/27/22 Talephone Exp. Admin.

310097 COMCAST 04/21/22 service: 04/28 =~ 05/27 20-5-55-42100 199,46 50914 05/09/22
Ww 04/21/22 Wastewater Telephone

310819 COUNTRY VILLAGE CAMPGROUN 03/05/22 carnival reservations 10-5-18-~61050 1000, 00 50915 05/09/22
RDOQDC4326 Brandon Carnival

301505 DANA SAFETY SUPPLY 04/18/22 light bar 10-5-14~41180 618.00 50916 05/09/22
786579 PD Vehiele Maintenance

310733 DENTON & SON 05/01/22 April dumpster fee 20-5-55-50160 45Q, 00 80917 05/0%8/22
APR 2022 Sludge Disposal

310978 DERMATEC DIRECT 04/14/22 gloves 10-5-14-30120 209,49 50918 05/09/22
1561238 Professional Supplies

100456 DUBOIS & KING INC 04/28/22 Union St-Pay Req #2 46-5~-21-20120 81l92.1¢6 50919 05/03/22
422313 Union Sidewalk Engineer

310305 DUMAS, RENEK 04/18/22 301 Newton Rd-Appraisal 56-5—-06—-20200 600.00 50920 05/08/22
22-081 Newton Rd Flood-Legal

300466 DUNDON PLUMBING & HEATING 04/22/22 septic truck @ Brookdale 20-5-55-20240 i032,50 80921 05/08/22
70457 Contractors

100494 ENDYNE INC 04/21/22 testing 20-5-55-22120 10G.00 50922 05/09/22
406253 Testing

100454 ENDYNE INC 04/22/22 testing 20-5-55-22120 25.00 50922 05/09/22
406365 Testing

100494 ENDYNE INC 04/29/22 testing 20~5-~55~22120 25.00 50922 05/08/22
4065926 Pesting

100424 ENDYNE INC 05/02/22 testing 20-5-55-22120 278.25 50922 05/09/22
407634 Testing

301132 F.R. MAHONY & ASSOC 05/04/22 replace Brookdale pumps 20-5-55-51230 14220.00 50923 05/08/22
SB39%566 Cutside Equip. — Pump 5t.

100756 F.W, WEEB COMPANY 04/1.9/22 adaptors 20-5-55-51310 371.02 50924 05/09/22
75799330 Collection Systems

100756 F.W. WEBB COMPANY 04/28/22 aulverts 10-5~15-46130 6695, 00 50924 05/08/22
75865588 Culverts

310426 FYLES BROS., INC. 04/25/22 propane § WW gen bldg 20-5-55-42110 534.8% 50925 05/08/22
78867 1P Gas - Bldgs

100332 GAGHNON LUMBER INC 05/02/22 mulch 10-5-22—-431460 360.00 50926 05/08/22
733086 Parks Maint.

300974 GRAPH-X INCORPORATED 05/05/22 caps and shirts 10-5-18-30070 3256.00 50927 05/08/22
4598 Little YLeague Expensas

100725 GREEN MOUNTAIN GARAGE 04/19/22 grommets, crimp tools 10-5-15-41160 17.47 E0928 05/09/22
181832 HW Maint. Supplies~Vehiel

100725 GREEN MOUNTATIN GARAGE 04/27/22 wheel nuts, anti-seize 10-5-15-41160 37.03 50928 05/092/22

182167

HW Maint. Supplies~Vehicl



05/05/22

TOWN CF BRANDON Accounts Payable

Page 3 of 4

03:18 pm Chack Warrant Report # £3549 Cuxzent Prior MNext FY Invoices Jacclyn
All Invoices For Check Acct 0L (L0 General Fund) 05/0%/22 To 05/03/22
Invelge Invelice Descripticn Amount Cheak Check

Vendor Date Invoice Numbexr Account Paid Nunber Date

100322 GREEN UP VERMONT 04/29/22 appropriaticn 10~5=17-~71440 300.00 50929 05/09/22
MAY 2022 Green—-Up Day

301018 ¥—9 GUBRDIAN, INC. 04/20/22 heat alarm, fan, guard 10-5-14-20440 1315,00 50930 05/09/22
8670272772 Police Dog Expenses

210335 KAS, INC 04/29/22 GW monitoring @ landfill 10-5-22-22130 2225.00 50931 D5/08/22
609210062-1 Testing/Monitor Fee

310999 KILPECK, BRIAN 05/04/22 reimb-pants 10-5-15-10320 159,96 30932 05/0%/22
5/4/22 Clething Allowance

100588 MARKOWSKI EXCAVATING, INC 04/30/22 3/4 minus 10-5-15-46140 875,00 50933 D5/08/22
V—-23795 Gravel

100030 MINER COMSTRUCTICN, INC, 04/28/22 repair of sewer line 20~5~55-=20240 275.00 50934 05/08/22
22113 Contragtors

301033 MOMBR INC 04/21/22 degreaser 20-5-55-51230 382,24 50935 05/09/22
B8T443%798 Outside Eguip,. ~ Pump St.

106910 NOBLE ACE HARDWARE RUTLAN 04/22/22 screw pin clevis 10-5-15-41160 59.54 50936 D5/D9/22
003584/1 HW Maint. Supplies—Vehicl

310585 OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH PARTN 05/04/22 Level Z2-Service Agreement 10-~5-17=61160 2253.82 50937 05/09/22
05042022 Worker's Comp Insuzance

310595 OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH PARTN D5/04/22 Level 2-Service Agreement 20-5-55-61160 195,98 50937 05/08/22
05042022 WW Workers Comp,

311081 OTTER CREEK WATERSHED IKS 04/23/22 appropriation 10-5-17-71800 10122,79 50938 03/08/22
MAY 2022 Mosquite Control

30lcs8s PETE'S TIRE BARNS, INC 04/12/22 tire 10-5-15-41170 203.82 50939 D5/09/22
013311 HW Tires ~ Vehicles

310488 PRIMMER PIPER EGGLESTON & 04/26/22 WATF Upgrade Bond 20~5«55-21110 732.00 50940 D5/D9/22
240357 Legal Services

100478 ROYAL GROUP, INC. 04/21/22 test & inspect fire alarm 10-5-22-43100 411,78 BE0941 05/09/22
689023 Town Qffice

300375 RUTLAND CITY 04/20/22 March sludge processing 20-5-55-50160 6300.00 50942 05/09/22
31.2258LUDG Sludge Disposal

100492 RUTLAND MENTAL HEALTH SER 04/29/22 appropriation 10-5-25-70210 1656,00 50943 03/09/22
MAY 2022 Rutland Mantal Health

310418 SILLOWAY NETWORKS INC 04/01/22 setup/config,monthly serv 10-5-10-30134 1775.69 50944 05/09/22
20215228 Technical Support

310418 SILLOWAY NETWORKS INC 04/20/22 cable-HDMI to VGA 10~5~10-30210 10.00 50944 05/09/22
202152395 Office Ecquipment

310418 SILLOWAY NETWORKS INC 05/01/22 Office, malware protectio 10-5-10-30134 B883.75 50944 05)09/22
20215453 Tachnical Support

100006 SOQUTHWESTERN VT COUNCIL O 04/2%/22 appropriation 10-5-25-70190 600,00 80945 05/09/22
MAY 2022 SW VT Councill on Aging

310133 STATE OF VERMONT 04/28/22 Stormwater Operating Fee 10-5-15-20300 1350.900 50946 05/09/22
MRGP 2022 State Permits

Permit # 8233-9040.A7

310921 STEARNS SERVICES LLC 04/27/22 consulting fee—~PR~4/22 10-5-10-30130 360.00 50947 05/09/22
1132 Service Contracta

310099 STEPHEN A DOUGLAS BIRTHRL 04/29/22 appropriation 10-5-25-70430 625,00 50948 05/09/22
MAY 2022 Stephen A. Douglas Inc.

301139 T AND L INC. 04/25/22 install light bar 10-5-14-41180 150.00 50949 05/09/22
146 PD Vehicle Maintenance

310953 TCE INC 04/14/22 Design for Culvert 56-5-10—-30100 2721,00 50950 05/09/22

38712

Arnold Dist Culvert



05/05/22 TOWN OF BRANDON Accounts Payable Page 4 of 4
03:18 pm Check Warrant Report # 63549 Current Pricr Next FY Invoices Jacolyn
All Inveldes For Check Acgct 01l {10 Zeneral ¥und) 05/09/22 To 05/09/22

Inveica Invoice Description Amount Chack Check

Vendor Date Invoice Kumber Account Paid Number Date

310953 TCE INC 04/28/22 Dasign for culvert 56—-5~10~30100 400.00 50951 05/09/22
38770 Arnold Digt Culwert

100682 USA BLUE BOOK 04/18/22 pH electrode 20-5-55-30120 389,84 50952 J5/09/22
949291 Professional Supplies

330348 VERIZON WIRELESS 04/22/22 service Mar 23 -~ Apr 22 10-5-14-20233 240.08 50953 §5/09/22
9904783451 MDT/Alxcards

300665 VERMONT ASSESSORS & LISTE D5/04/22 membership 10-5-11-10330 50.00 80954 C5/09/22
2022 Dues & Subscriptions

200298 VERMONT RECREATION & PARK 05/03/22 membership renawal 10-5-18-10320 305,00 50955 05/00/22
02139 Dues & Subscriptions

100317 VERMONT STATE TREASURER-D 08/02/22 dogs Jan-April 10-2~00=-02112 1400.00 50856 05/09/22
MAY 2022 Deg Lig, Fees to State

100485 VNA & HOSPICE OF THE SOUT 04/28/22 appropriation 10-5-25-70200 2550.00 BOSET 05/05/22
MAY 2022 RAVNA

310046 W.B., MASON CO INC 04/15/22 drums 10-5-10-30110 128.50 50958 05/09/22
229121442 Office Supplies

311070 WEX BANK 04/30/22 Gas — April 2022 20~5=55~41130 25.61 50959 05/09/22
806744431 Fuel — Vehiclaes

31io70 WEX BANK 04/30/22 Gas -~ April 2022 10-5-14-41130 1933.70 50959 05/08/22
806744431 Fuel - Vehicles

3119070 WEX BANK 04/30/22 Gas = April 2022 10-5-22-43120 27,72 50659 05/09/22
808744431 Municipal Mowing-maint

311070 WEX BANK 04/30/22 Gas — April 2022 10-5-15-41130 194,37 50059 05/00/22
806744431 Fuel - Vehicles HW

311070 WEX BANK 04/30/22 Gas - April 2022 10-5-18-20100 73.36 50859 05/09/22
806744431 Fuel

311001 WHEELER, MANDY 04/30/22 dog park sign 10-5-18-10320 36.00 50960 05/09/22
INVOOL75 Advertising/Recruitment

301115 WHITHNEY, SARAH 04/14/22 reimburse — baseball geazx 10-5-18-30070 213.98 50961 05/09/22
04/14/22 Little League Expenses

Report Total 199102. 93
Selectboard

To the Treasurer of TOWN OF BRANDON, We Hereby certify

that there is due to the several perscns whose names are

listed hereon the sum against each name and that there

are good and sufficisnt vouchers supporting the payments

aggragating § #*%10808,102,03

Let this be your order for the payments of these amounts,




